
LEAVENWORTH COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

Agenda for the Regular Meeting of 6:00 P.M., Wednesday, February 10, 2021 

County Courthouse - 300 Walnut Street - Leavenworth, Kansas 66048 

www.leavenworthcounty.gov 

 

Due to limited seating anyone wishing to attend will need to call 913-684-0465 

before noon on Tuesday, February 9th.  Attendees will be required to wear a mask. 

We encourage everyone to view the meeting live via YouTube 

1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance  

3.  Roll Call 
 

4. Approval of Minutes  
 

5. Secretary’s Report 
 

6. Approval of Agenda 
 

7. Declarations: (if necessary) 

A. Declarations of receipt of communications by Planning Commissioners 

B. Disclosure of ex-parte communications for each hearing item 

C. Declarations of abstention from specific agenda items by a Commissioner 

 

8.  Consent Agenda 

 

A. Case DEV-20-150 & 151 (Hedgebrook Subdivision) 

Consideration of a Preliminary and Final Plat for Hedgebrook Subdivision, a three-lot 

plat, on a tract of land in the Southeast ¼ of Section 14, Township 10 South, Range 22 

East of the 6th P.M. in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 

Also known as 00000 147th Street (156-14-0-00-00-011.00) 

Request submitted by Hahn Surveying  

 

B. Case DEV-20-152 & 153 (Guenther and Barker Estates) 

Consideration of a Preliminary and Final Plat for Guenther and Barker Estates, a two-lot 

plat, on a tract of land located in the Southeast quarter of Section 33, Township 9 South, 

Range 22 East of the 6th PM, Leavenworth County, Kansas. 

Also known as 16684 McIntyre Road (108-33-0-00-00-018.00) 

Request submitted by Herring Surveying 

 

C. Case DEV-20-154 & 155 (Tiner Acres) 

Consideration of a Preliminary and Final Plat for Tiner Acres, a two-lot plat, on a tract of 

land in the Southwest quarter of Section 5, Township 11 South, Range 22 East of the 6th 

PM in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 

Also known as 19050 182nd Street (183-05-0-00-00-010.02) 

Request submitted by Herring Surveying 

 

 

 

http://www.leavenworthcounty.gov/


 

D. Case DEV-20-156 & 157 (Sammons Estates) 

Consideration of a Preliminary and Final Plat for Sammons Estates on a tract of land 

located in the west half of the Northeast ¼ of Section 17, Township 9, Range 22 East of 

the 6th P.M., in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 

Also known as 17344 Eisenhower Road (104-17-0-00-00-002.00) 

Request submitted by Herring Surveying Company 

 

9.  Regular Agenda  

 

A. Case DEV-20-147 (CoolHeat KC)  

Consideration of an application for a Special Use Permit for CoolHeat KC, a HVAC 

repair service, located on a tract of land in the Southeast 1/4 of Section 27, Township 11, 

Range 22 East of the 6th P.M., in Leavenworth County, Kansa. 

Also known as 15890 Linwood Road (187-27-0-00-00-004.03) 

Request submitted by Richard Rogers 

***Public Hearing Required*** 

***Public Comment limited to three minutes per person*** 

 

B. Case DEV-20-158 (Polhemus Mechanic) – (Continued to March 10, 2021) 

Consideration of an application for a Special Use Permit for Polhemus Mechanic, an 

Automotive Repair Service, located on Lot 7 in Hidden Meadows Subdivision Phase 1, in 

Leavenworth County, Kansas.  

Also known as 17405 Gatewood Street (103-08-0-00-00-015.06) 

***Public Hearing Required*** 

***Public Comment limited to three minutes per person*** 

 

C. Case DEV-20-159 (Bed and Breakfast) 

Consideration of an application for a Special Use Permit for a Bed & Breakfast located 

on a tract of land in the Southeast ¼ of Section 18, Township 9 South, Range 22 East of 

the 6th P.M. in Leavenworth County Kansas. 

Also known as:  18131 Eisenhower Road (104-18-0-00-00-023.01) 

Request submitted by Douglas and Kendra DeLashmutt 

***Public Hearing Required*** 

***Public Comment limited to three minutes per person*** 

 

D. Case DEV-21-002 (FreeState Electric Solar Farm)  

Consideration of an application for a Special Use Permit for an electrical substation for 

FreeState Electric Solar Farm on a tract of land located in the Southeast ¼ of Section 26, 

Township 10 South, Range 2 East of the 6th P.M, Leavenworth County, Kansas.   

Also known as: 00000 Tonganoxie Drive (147-26-0-00-00-014.07) 

Request submitted by FreeState Electric Cooperative  

***Public Hearing Required*** 

***Public Comment limited to three minutes per person*** 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

E. Case DEV-20-149 (Rezone – McCall) 

Consideration of an application for a rezoning request from RR-5 zoning district to the 

RR-2.5 zoning district on a tract of land located in the Northeast Quarter of Section 4, 

Township 10 South, Range 22 East of the 6th P.M., in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 

Also known as:  16421 McIntyre Road (152-04-0-00-00-001.02) 

Request submitted by Herring Surveying  

***Public Hearing Required*** 

***Public Comment limited to three minutes per person*** 

 

E. Case DEV-20-160 (Text Amendment) – (Continued to March 10, 2021) 

Consideration of an application to consider Amendments to the 2006 Leavenworth 

County Zoning and Subdivision Regulations:   

Article – 3 Definitions – Private Roads 

Article – 18 Planned Zoning Districts 

Article – 27 Site Plan Development 

***Public Hearing Required*** 

***Public Comment limited to three minutes per person*** 

 

Adjournment of Planning Commission 

 

Next meeting date:   

 

Wednesday, March 10, 2021 – Regular Planning Commission Meeting 

 

Planning Commission Seating Chart 2021 

 

 

 

 

For More Information 

If you have any questions or need to make special arrangements for a meeting 

 Please call or stop by the Planning & Zoning Dept. 

Contact Stephanie Sloop – (913)-684-0465 

Recording 
 Station  

Jeff Spink 

Tom Dials 
 

A.W. “Rocky” 
Himpel 
 

Wolf Schmidt  

Steve 
Rosenthal 
 (Chairman) 

John Matthews  

Terry Bartkoski   

Mark Denney 
Grosdidier  

Alex DeMoro 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Leavenworth County 
Planning Commission 

February 10, 2021 

DEV-20-152 & 153 
Preliminary & Final Plat 
Guenther & Barker 
Estates 

DEV-20-154 & 155 
Preliminary & Final Plat 
Tiner Acres 

DEV-20-150 & 151 
Preliminary & Final Plat 
Hedgebrook Subdivision 

DEV-20-159  
SUP: The Barn 
Bed & Breakfast 

DEV-21-002  
SUP: Freestate Electric 
Solar Farm 

DEV-20-156 & 157 
Preliminary & Final Plat 
Sammons Estates 

DEV-20-147 
SUP: CoolHeat KC 
HVAC   
 

DEV-20-149 
Rezone: RR-5 
to RR-2.5 



February 10, 2021                                    Leavenworth County Planning Commission 1 

***Consent Agenda*** 
Case No. DEV-20-150/151 
Hedgebrook Subdivision  
Preliminary and Final Plat 

 
Staff Report – Planning Commission      February 10, 2021 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
Applicant/                   Joyce Haas 
Property Owner: 22303 147th Street 

Basehor, KS 66007 
 
Agent: Hann Surveyor    
 
Legal Description:      A tract of land in the southeast ¼ of Section 14, Township 10South, Range 

22 East of the 6th P.M, in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 
 
Location: 22111 147th Street, located ¼ mile north of Hollingsworth Road. 

 
Parcel Size: ± 19 
 
Zoning/Land Use: RR-2.5, Rural Residential 2.5-acre minimum size parcels 
 
Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Residential 3 units/acre land use category.   
 
Parcel ID No.:   156-14-0-00-00-011.01 

 
Planner:  Krystal A. Voth 
 

REPORT: 
 

Request   
The applicant is requesting a Preliminary and Final Plat for a three-lot lot subdivision.  
 
Adjacent Land Use 
The surrounding properties are residences and farms on varying sized parcels ranging from 1 acre to over 
140 acres in size. Falcon Lakes Subdivision is approximately ¼ mile to the southeast of the parcel.  
 
Flood Plain   
There are no Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel per FEMA Firm Map 20103C0241G July 16, 2015.  
 
Utilities/Services 
Sewer: Private septic system  
Fire: Fairmount  
Water: RWD 1  
Electric:  Evergy  
 
Access/Streets  
The property is accessed by 147th street. This road is a County arterial with a hard surface ± 36’ wide. 
 
 Agency Comments 
See attached comments – Memo – Olsson – Public Works, January 27, 2021 
See attached comments – Memo – Mike Fulkerson – Rural Water District 1, January 8, 2021 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 



February 10, 2021                                    Leavenworth County Planning Commission 2 

Findings 
1. The proposed subdivision is consistent with the zoning district of RR 2.5; Rural Residential Zoning 

2.5-acre minimum size parcels 
 

2. The property is not within a sewer district boundary or is within 660 feet of the incorporated limits of a 
municipality; therefore, a waiver to the requirement of allowing private septic systems is supported by 
staff. A private sewage disposal permit may be issued per Leavenworth County Sanitary Code 
requirements.    
 

3. The water district currently has adequate infrastructure to supply water to the lots within this 
subdivision and also can provide fire protection. 
 

4. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the comprehensive plan since sanitary sewer is not 
available at this time. This area has been identified by the City of Basehor as being serviceable by 
gravity sewer, however, the closest sewer connection is 2,800 from the property.  

  
 

Subdivision Classification 
This is classified as a Class “C” Subdivision. According to the Leavenworth County Zoning & Subdivision 
regulations, a Class “C” Subdivision is any subdivision in which all the lots lie within the Rural Growth Area of 
Leavenworth County. 

 
Staff Comments   
The applicant is requesting a three-lot subdivision located north of 147th and Hollingsworth Road. The 
proposed lots are each approximately 6.5 acres and meet the current zoning district requirements. The City 
of Basehor is located approximately ¼ mile to the southeast of the property. The City indicates that this area 
is located within their future development area. However, gravity sewer is 2,800 feet away. Under current 
County policy, parcels which lie outside of 660 feet of the incorporated boundary of a city are not required to 
obtain city services. The three-lot plat, as presented, meets the zoning district regulations and will not hinder 
future growth of the City of Basehor. Staff recommends that if future development of this parcel were to occur 
that careful consideration be given to requiring the developer work with city staff to extend sanitary sewer. 
Staff recommends approval of the plat as presented.   
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The staff recommends approval of Case No.DEV-20-150/151, Preliminary and Final Plat for Hedgebrook 
Subdivision, with the following conditions: 
 

1. Building permits shall be required for any new construction. 
 

2. Erosion control shall be used when designing and constructing driveways.  A form of sediment control 
shall be installed before work begins and maintained throughout the time that the land disturbing 
activities are taking place.  Re-vegetation of all disturbed sites shall be completed within 45 days after 
completion of final grading weather permitting. 
 

3. The applicant shall adhere to the following memorandums:  
a. Olsson – Public Works, January 27, 2021  
b. Mike Fulkerson- Rural Water District 1, January 8, 2021 
 

4.  A waiver for the use of private septic systems within this subdivision is granted with this approval. 
 
5. Fire hydrants shall be installed at the time of development if adequate infrastructure exists.       
 
6. After approval of this subdivision by the Board of County Commission, all conditions listed shall be 

adhered to and copies shall be provided to the Planning and Zoning Department within 30 days. 
 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
 

1. Recommend approval of Case No DEV-20-150/151, Preliminary and Final Plat for Hedgebrook 
Subdivision, to the Board of County Commission, with or without conditions; or 
 



February 10, 2021                                    Leavenworth County Planning Commission 3 

2. Recommend denial of Case No. DEV-20-150/151, Preliminary and Final Plat for Hedgebrook 
Subdivision, to the Board of County Commission for the following reasons; or  

 
3. Continue the hearing to another date, time, and place because; 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Aerial Map 
Memorandums  
Preliminary and Final Plat 
 

 



Hedgebrook Subdivision

1,531.7

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

Feet1,531.70

Notes

Legend

765.85

1 in. = 766ft.

This Cadastral Map is for informational purposes only.  It does not purport to
represent a property boundary survey of the parcels shown and shall not be

used for conveyances or the establishment of property boundaries.

Parcel Number

Parcel

City Limit Line

Major Road

<all other values>

70

Road

Railroad

Section

Section Boundaries



Traverse PC

Include the
restrictions from the
final plat.

Provide limits of tree
line and label.

01-27-21

OLSSON REVIEW



                

Consolidated Water District #1 
Leavenworth County, Kansas  

 
P.O. Box 419,  15520 Crestwood Dr.   Basehor, KS 66007         (913)-724-7000 - Office    (913)-724-1310 - Fax        www.crwd1.com 

                
 

 

January 8, 2021 
 

 

Krystal Voth, CFM 
Director 

Leav. Co. Planning & Zoning 

300 Walnut 

Leavenworth, KS  66048 
 

 

Re:  Hedgebrook Subdivision 
 

 

Dear Ms. Voth, 

 
     The above-mentioned plat is in the service area of Consolidated Water District #1. 

 

 After reviewing the plat, the Water District makes the following comments; 
 

1. The Water District will serve the domestic and fire flow needs of the proposed development from an 

existing 12-inch water main located on the east side of 147th St. (see attached map). 
 

2. Fire hydrants are located north and south from the proposed plat (red dots on attached map).  The fire 

hydrant north of the proposed development is approximately 450 feet north of the north property line of 

the development, and the fire hydrant south, is approximately 400 feet south of the south property line.  
If additional fire hydrants are needed, they can be added to the 12-inch water main, at the developer’s 

expense. 

 
3. The Water District does not have any future plans of replacing/upgrading the water lines in the area of 

the proposed plat.     

 
4. Any water main extensions needed to serve the proposed lots of the development will be at the 

developer’s expense and shall follow the water districts design standards.   

 

5. Any future customers shall follow the policies for new connections in place at the time of need. 
 

     Should you have further questions or comments, please feel free to contact us at your convenience.  We are 

certainly looking forward to serving this development and its future homeowners. 
 

 

Respectfully, 

 
 

 

Mike Fulkerson 
Operations Manager 

 

 
Cc; file 

http://www.crwd1.com/


 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Fire Hydrant Location 
 
 
 
 
 Property Line of Subdivision 



Traverse PC



Traverse PC



February 10, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 1 

***Consent Agenda*** 
Case No. DEV-20-152/153 

Guenther & Barker Estates 
Preliminary and Final Plat 

 
Staff Report – Planning Commission      February 10, 2021 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
Applicant/                   Brian Guenther 
Property Owner: 16684 McIntyre Road 

Leavenworth, KS 66048 
 
Agent: Herring Surveying  
 
Legal Description:      A tract of land in the Southeast quarter of Section 33, Township 9 South, 

Ranger 22 East of the 6th PM, Leavenworth County, Kansas 
 
Parcel Size: ± 20.23 acres 
 
Zoning/Land Use: RR-5, Rural Residential 5-acre minimum size parcels 
 
Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Residential land use category.   
 
Parcel ID No.:   108-33-0-00-00-018.00 

 
Planner:  Jared Clements 
 

REPORT: 
 

Request   
The applicant is requesting a Preliminary and Final Plat for a two-lot subdivision.  
 
Adjacent Land Use 
The surrounding properties are residences and farms on varying sized parcels ranging from 1 acre to over 
140 acres in size.   
 
Flood Plain   
There are no Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel per FEMA Firm Map 20103C325G & 20103C350G 
July 16, 2015.  
 
Utilities/Services 
Sewer: Private septic system  
Fire: Fire District 1 
Water: RWD 8 
Electric:  Freestate 
 
Access/Streets  
The property is accessed by McIntyre Road. This road is a County road with a gravel surface ±22’ wide. 
 
Agency Comments 
See attached comments – Email – Mitch Pleak – Public Works, January 4, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Steve Tufte – County Reviewer, February 1, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – David Van Parys – County Counselor, January 4, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Becky Fousek – Rural Water District 8, January 4, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Amanda Tarwater – Freestate Electric utility, December 31, 2020 
 
 

 

 

 



February 10, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 2 

Findings 
1. The proposed subdivision is consistent with the zoning district of RR 5; Rural Residential Zoning 5-acre 

minimum size parcels and meets the lot-depth to lot-width ratio of 3.5:1 or 4:1, have the minimum 
frontage of 300’, Minimum lot size of 5 acres. 
 

2. The property is not within a sewer district boundary nor within 660 feet of the incorporated limits of a 
municipality; therefore, a waiver to the requirement of allowing private septic systems is supported by 
staff. A private sewage disposal permit may be issued per Leavenworth County Sanitary Code 
requirements.    

 
3. The water district currently has adequate infrastructure to supply water to the lots within this subdivision 

but does not/cannot provide fire protection. 
(See condition 5.) 

 
4. The proposed subdivision is in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan. 

 
Subdivision Classification 
This is classified as a Class “C” Subdivision. According to the Leavenworth County Zoning & Subdivision 
regulations, a Class “C” Subdivision is any subdivision in which all the lots lie within the Rural Growth Area of 
Leavenworth County. 
 
Staff is supportive of a waiver of the requirement to connect to a sanitary sewer system as sanitary sewers 
are not located within 660’ of the subdivision. (See condition 4.) 

 
Staff Comments   
This is a 2-lot subdivision on McIntyre Road. The proposal is consistent with Zoning and Subdivision 
Regulations, as well as the comprehensive plan. Lot 1 is 5 acres and Lot 2 is 15.23 acres. Both lots are 
accessed via McIntyre Road. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The staff recommends approval of Case No.DEV-20-152 & 153, Preliminary and Final Plat for Guenther & 
Barker Estates, with the following conditions: 
 

1. Building permits shall be required for any new construction. 
 

2. Erosion control shall be used when designing and constructing driveways.  A form of sediment control 
shall be installed before work begins and maintained throughout the time that the land disturbing 
activities are taking place.  Re-vegetation of all disturbed sites shall be completed within 45 days after 
completion of final grading weather permitting. 
 

3. The applicant shall adhere to the following memorandums: 
a. Mitch Pleak – Public Works, January 4, 2021 
b. Becky Fousek – Rural Water District 8, January 4, 2021 
c. Steve Tufte – County Reviewer, February 1, 2021 
 

4. A waiver for the use of private septic systems within this subdivision is granted with this approval. 
 

5. At the time of development, fire hydrants shall be required if necessary infrastructure is available.   
 

6. After approval of this subdivision by the Board of County Commission, all conditions listed shall be 
adhered to and copies shall be provided to the Planning and Zoning Department within 30 days. 
 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
 

1. Recommend approval of Case No. DEV-20-152 & 153, Preliminary and Final Plat for Guenther & 
Barker Estates, to the Board of County Commission, with or without conditions; or 
 

2. Recommend denial of Case No. DEV-20-152 & 153, Preliminary and Final Plat for Guenther & Barker 
Estates to the Board of County Commission for the following reasons; or  

 
3. Continue the hearing to another date, time, and place because; 



February 10, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 3 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Aerial Map 
Memorandums  
Preliminary and Final Plat 
 

 



February 10, 2021                                        Leavenworth County Planning Commission 1 

Case No. DEV-20-147 
CoolHeat KC 

Special Use Permit – HVAC Repair Service 
***Public Hearing Required*** 

 
Staff Report – Planning Commission  February 10, 2021 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
Applicant/                   Richard Rogers 
Property Owner: 15890 Linwood Road 

Bonner Springs, KS 66012 
 

Legal Description:      A tract of land in the southeast ¼ of Section 27, Township 11 South, Range 
22 East of the 6th P.M, in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 

 
Location: 15890 Linwood Road 

 
Parcel Size: ± 2.5 acres 
 
Zoning/Land Use: RR-2.5, Rural Residential 2.5-acre minimum size parcels 
 
Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Rural Residential land use category.   
 
Parcel ID No.:   188-27-0-00-00-004.03-0 

 
Planner:  Krystal A. Voth 
 

REPORT: 
 

Request   
The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit for an HVAC Repair service and for the limited storage of 
used HVAC systems while awaiting recycling.  
 
Adjacent Land Use 
The surrounding properties are residences and farms on varying sized parcels ranging from 1 acre to over 
140 acres in size.   
 
Flood Plain   
There are no Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel per FEMA Firm Map 20103C350G July 16, 2015.  
 
Utilities/Services 
Sewer: Private septic system  
Fire: Fairmount  
Water: RWD 7  
Electric:  Evergy  
 
Access/Streets  
The property is accessed by Linwood Road/K-32, a State-maintained highway. 
 
 Agency Comments 
 No agency comments were provided. 
 

Factors to be considered 
The following factors are to be considered by the Planning Commission and the Board of County 
Commission when approving or disapproving this Special Use Permit request: 

1. Character of the neighborhood:  The character of the neighborhood is rural; primarily rural residences, 
and agricultural uses along with a scattering of business uses. The Lake Stop convenience store is 
located directly east of the subject parcel and Performance Glass is located directly south of the 
subject parcel. 



February 10, 2021                                        Leavenworth County Planning Commission 2 

2. Zoning and uses of nearby property:  Much of the surrounding area is zoned as Rural Residential-2.5. 
The corners of 158th and Linwood are zoned as B-3, and less than ¼ mile to the west of the subject 
property is a large subdivision which is zoned as a PUD.  

3. Suitability of the property for the uses to which it has been restricted:  The property is within an area 
suited for rural residences and agricultural use. The use is allowed with approval of a Special Use 
Permit.  

4. Extent to which removal of the restrictions will detrimentally affect nearby property:  Currently, the 
applicant is storing materials on the property and the materials are not screened or enclosed. Several 
neighbors have complained about the storage of materials. Outdoor storage of these types of materials 
are not consistent with the rural residential zoning district. The proposed use does not cause any 
increase in traffic. The applicant has indicated he has plans to build a shop on the property to house 
the materials.  

5. Length of time the property has been vacant as zoned:  The property is not vacant. 
6. Relative gain to economic development, public health, safety and welfare:  The proposed use will 

provide income for the applicant. 
7. Conformance to the Comprehensive Plan:  The Future Land Use Map indicates this area as 

Residential.  
8. Staff recommendation is for the approval of Special Use Permit with conditions. 

 
 

 

Staff Analysis 
 

LOCATION 
Adjacent Residences Adjacent residences are rural in nature and are primarily located on lots that are 

greater than 2.5 acres.   

Adjacent Zoning/Uses General zoning within the area is Rural Residential-2.5. The corners of 158th 
Street and Linwood Road are zoned as B-3, along with two additional parcels. The 
subdivision of Bear Lake is to the west and is zoned as a PUD. There is a 
convenience store and a glass manufacturing business located within the direct 
vicinity of the proposed business.  

Density The area is not densely populated. 

Nearby City Limits The property is not located near an incorporated city limit.  

Initial Growth 
Management Area 

The property is not located within an initial growth management area.  

 

 

SITE COMPATABILITY 
Size of Parcel The parcel is 2.5 acres in size. 

Zoning of Parcel The parcel is zoned Rural Residential-2.5 

Buildings  
(Existing & Proposed) 

There are currently no accessory buildings on the property. The applicant 
proposed to build a shop.  

Setbacks Existing building meet the required setbacks. 

Screening There is no existing screening.  

  
Site Visit 
Staff visited the site in early January. At that time, there were several old units being stored along the 
driveway. The business, in the current state, does not conform to the rural residential nature of the area.  

IMPACT 
Noise Pollution The proposed use will not create additional noise.   

Traffic The use will not create a measurable increase in traffic.  

Lighting The applicant does not have lighting other than security lighting and is not 
requesting lighting. 

Outdoor Storage The applicant currently stores limited HVAC units outside. A condition of the SUP 
is to build a shop that can house the units. 

Parking The applicant has ample parking space for employees. 

Visitors/Employees One employee comes to the site once a week. There are no customers.  

Waste A by-product of the business is the recycling of used HVAC systems. These 
systems shall be recycled per KDHE requirements.  



February 10, 2021                                        Leavenworth County Planning Commission 3 

Complaints 
Staff has received complaints regarding this business which is currently operating without a Special Use 
Permit. 
 
Staff Comments   
The applicant is currently operating an HVAC repair business out of his home. The primary concern of the 
business is not with the repair of units, which takes place off site. The applicant is currently storing used and 
discarded materials at his home. The applicant states that the units are recycled and properly disposed of, 
however there are currently several units stored outside along the driveway. The applicant has indicated 
plans to build a shop to house the materials.  
 
The applicant indicates that one employee comes to the home approximately once per week. All services 
take place off site.  
 
The recommendation of Staff is for a short-term approval of the Special Use Permit with a condition that an 
outbuilding be constructed to house any materials. In the event the applicant does not have the building 
constructed, the SUP should not be renewed. Further, the applicant should work closely with KDHE-Small 
Business/Pollution Prevention division to ensure all necessary protocols are being followed for the storage 
and recycling of materials. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of DEV-20-147, Special Use Permit for CoolHeat KC subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

1. The SUP shall be limited to a period of one year. 
 

2. The applicant shall cause to have constructed an accessory building for the storage of all business-
related equipment. 

 
3. The applicant shall contact the Kansas Department of Health and Environment – Small 

Business/Pollution Prevention division to ensure all necessary protocols are being followed to ensure 
the safe storage of materials.  

 
4. No signage is allowed in the right-of-way.  No signage is requested with the SUP.  All signage shall 

comply with Article 25, Sign Regulations of the Leavenworth County Zoning and Subdivision 
Regulations. 

 
5.  No on-street parking shall be allowed. 
 
6.  This SUP shall be limited to the Narrative dated December 7, 2020 submitted with this application. 
 
7. This SUP shall comply with all local, state, and federal rules and regulations that may be applicable. 

After approval of this SUP by the Board of County Commission all conditions listed shall be adhered to 
and copies shall be provided to the Planning and Zoning Department within 30 days. 
 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
 

1. Recommend approval of Case No. DEV-20-147, Special Use Permit for CoolHeat KC, to the Board of 
County Commission, with Findings of Fact, and with or without conditions; or 
 

2. Recommend denial of Case No. DEV-20-147, Special Use Permit for CoolHeat KC, to the Board of 
County Commission, with Findings of Fact; or  

 
3. Continue the Public hearing to another date, time, and place. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Narrative 
Location/Aerial Maps 
Memorandums  
 



Cool Heat KC SUP

895.5

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

Feet895.50

Notes

Legend

447.75

1 in. = 448ft.

This Cadastral Map is for informational purposes only.  It does not purport to
represent a property boundary survey of the parcels shown and shall not be

used for conveyances or the establishment of property boundaries.

Parcel Number

Parcel

City Limit Line

Major Road

<all other values>

70

Road

Railroad

Section

Section Boundaries

County Boundary



 











From:                                         Clements, Jared
Sent:                                           Friday, February 5, 2021 11:52 AM
To:                                               Clements, Jared
Subject:                                     FW: Guenther & Barker Estates REVISIONS
A�achments:                          Guenther Barker PRELIM.pdf; Guenther Barker FINAL.pdf; RR-33-9-22-

11X-Guenther 2020.pdf; RR-33-9-22-11Z-2020.pdf; RR-33-9-22-13Z-
2020.pdf; K-17-1142-2020 GUENTHER FINAL-Deed Report.txt

 

From: Clements, Jared 
Sent: Tuesday, January 12, 2021 11:58 AM
To: 'Joe Herring' ; 'David Lutgen' 
Cc: 'mpleak@olsson.com' ; Voth, Krystal ; Noll, Bill 
Subject: Guenther & Barker Estates PZ & Olsson Review
 
Good Morning Joe,
 
Please find the a�ached reviews from Olsson, as well as the PZ review below for Guenther and
Barker Estates. Please note we are awai�ng the final plat surveyor-review from Public Works due
to an oversight on my part. That being said, there should s�ll be ample �me to get final revisions
in by January 29, 2021.
 
PZ review of Preliminary & Final Plat

Please include adjacent PID’s
Adjust the name to reflect requested change (expected, just a reminder)
Add all property owners to the signature lines (if necessary)

 
Respec�ully,
 
 
Jared Clements
Planner II
Leavenworth County Planning and Zoning
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212
Leavenworth, KS  66048
(913)684-0465
 

mailto:JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov


Appears to be a sump
located here. 
Indicate Pipe and
Pipe Size.

PID #'s

1-04-21

OLSSON REVIEW



1-04-21

OLSSON REVIEW

No Comments



dlutgen72@gmail.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Guenther Estates 

Leavenworth County Kansas 

Drainage Report 

 Prepared December 12, 2020 

Revised January 12, 2021 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





dlutgen72@gmail.com 

 

Parcel Information - The 20.2-acre (+/-) parcel is located on the north side of McIntyre Road  in 

Leavenworth County KS.  The address to the home on Lot #2 is 16684 McIntyre Rd.  The parcel is zoned 

RR 5.0.  The parcel is a home site and used as pasture. 

Existing Conditions – The site can be divided into two drainage areas, see exhibit #1.  All storm water 

runoff from the site flows east off of the site. 

 

A composite c value was calculated for each drainage area as shown in the table below.  The composite 

c value is based on the soil type, slopes, and existing land use, see Exhibits #2 and #3.   

Existing   Acres in each Drainage Area 

  c value DA #1 DA #2     

Wooded 0.35 0.0 0.0     

Pasture 0.36 14.8 5.2     

Crops 0.60 0.0 0.0     

Impervious 0.90 0.2 0.0     

Composite c   0.37 0.36     

 

composite c = 

(Wooded Acres * 0.35 + Pasture Acres * 0.36 + Crop Acres * 0.60 

+ Impervious * 0.90) 

Total Acres 

 

Developed Conditions – The proposed development will create 2 residential building lots.  The 

developed storm water runoff calculations include 10,000 sq ft of impervious area for lot #1.  This 

impervious area will account for the driveway, house footprint, and outbuilding.  The remainder of the 

lot is assumed to be maintained as pasture.  A c value of 0.36 is used for pasture area while a c value of 

0.90 is used for the impervious areas.  A composite c value for each drainage area was calculated as 

shown below. 

 

Developed   Acres in each Drainage Area 

  c value DA #1 DA #2     

Wooded 0.35 0.0 0.0     

Pasture 0.36 14.6 5.2     

Crops 0.60 0.0 0.0     

Impervious 0.90 0.4 0.0     

Composite c   0.38 0.36     

 



dlutgen72@gmail.com 

composite c = 

(Wooded Acres * 0.35 + Pasture Acres * 0.36 + Crop Acres * 0.60 

+ Impervious * 0.90) 

Total Acres 

 

The storm water runoff for existing and developed conditions is summarized in the following tables.  

Calculations for the storm water runoff are included with the report. 

 DA #1  

  Q10 Q100 

Existing 30.1 53.5 

Developed 31.3 55.6 

Change 4% 4% 

 

The increase in storm water runoff results in a 0.02-ft rise at the property line in both the10-yr storm 

and 100-yr storm events, see exhibits #4 – #7. 

 

Conclusion – The creation of an additional building lot on this parcel of ground results in a 4% increase 

in storm water runoff from the property.   

 

 

 



dlutg
Text Box
EXHIBIT #1

dlutg
Text Box
NORTH   NTS

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Text Box
DA #1

dlutg
Text Box
DA #2

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Text Box
McIntyre Road

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow



Generated by a Trial Version of NetCentric Technologies’ CommonLook® Acrobat® Plug-in. www.net-centric.com

TABLE 1 Values of Runoff Coefficient C 
URBAN AREAS: 

Type of drainage area Runoff coefficient C 
 

Lawns: 
Sandy soil, flat 2%  
Sandy soil, average, 2 - 7%  
Sandy soil, steep, 7%  
Heavy soil, flat, 2%  
Heavy soil, average, 2 - 7%  
Heavy soil, steep, 7% 

 0.05 - 0.10 
 
 0.10 - 0.15 
 0.15 - 0.20 
 0.13-0.17  
 
 0.18 - 0.22  
 0.25 - 0.35 

Business: 
Downtown areas Neighborhood areas 

0.70 - 0.95  
0.50.0.70 

Residential: 
Single-family areas  
Multi units, detached Multi units,  
attached Suburban  
Apartment dwelling areas 

0.30 - 0.50  
0.40 - 0.60 
0.60 - 0.75 
0.25 - 0.40 
0.50 - 0.70 

Industrial: 
Light areas 
Heavy areas 

 
0.50 - 0.80 
0.60 - 0.90  

Parks, cemeteries 0.10 - 0.25 
Playgrounds  0.20 - 0.35 
Railroad yard areas 0.20 - 0.40 
Unimproved areas 0.10 - 0.30 
Streets: 
Asphaltic  
Concrete  
Brick  

0.70 - 0.95 
0.80 - 0.95 
0.70 - 0.85 

Drives and walks 
Roofs  

0.75 - 0.85 
0.75 - 0.95 

 
 
AGRICULTURAL AREAS: 

Topography 
 and  

Vegetation 

Runoff Coefficient C Soil Texture 
Soil Texture 

Open Sandy Loam Clay and Silt Loam Tight Clay 
Woodland 
Flat 0 - 5% Slope  
Rolling 5 - 10% Slope 
Hilly 10 - 30% Slope 

 
0.10 
0.25 
0.30 
 

 
0.30 
0.35 
0.50 
 

 
0.40 
0.50 
0.60 
 

Pasture 
Flat 
Rolling 
Hilly 

0.10 
0.16 
0.22 

0.30 
0.36 
0.42 
 

0.40 
0.55 
0.60 

 

Cultivated 
Flat 
Rolling 
Hilly 

 

 
0.30 
0.40 
0.52 
 

 
0.50 
0.60 
0.72 
 

 
0.60 
0.70 
0.82 

 
                    
           
 
 

dlutg
Highlight

dlutg
Highlight

dlutg
Snapshot

dlutg
Text Box
Source -

dlutg
Text Box
EXHIBIT #2

dlutg
Highlight



���������� !��"� 
#!$ ��%��&!$�'��%&"�

dlutg
Snapshot

dlutg
Snapshot

dlutg
Snapshot

dlutg
Text Box
EXHIBIT #3



Channel Report
Project filename: Guenther.stx

Studio Express by Hydrology Studio v 1.0.0.9 01-12-2021

Pre-Platting 10 Channel 1

TRAPEZOIDAL

Bottom Width = 10.00 ft

Side Slope Left, z:1 = 4.00

Side Slope Right, z:1 = 4.00

Total Depth = 2.00 ft

Invert Elevation = 100.00 ft

Channel Slope = 1.000 %

Manning's n = 0.030

DISCHARGE

Method = Known Q

Known Q = 30.10 cfs

CALCULATION SAMPLE

Flow Depth Area Velocity WP n-value Crit Depth HGL EGL Max Shear Top Width

(cfs) (ft) (sqft) (ft/s) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (lb/sqft) (ft)

30.10 0.70 8.96 3.36 15.77 0.030 0.61 100.70 100.88 0.44 15.60

dlutg
Text Box
EXHIBIT #4



Channel Report
Project filename: Guenther.stx

Studio Express by Hydrology Studio v 1.0.0.9 01-12-2021

Post-Platting 10 Channel 2

TRAPEZOIDAL

Bottom Width = 10.00 ft

Side Slope Left, z:1 = 4.00

Side Slope Right, z:1 = 4.00

Total Depth = 2.00 ft

Invert Elevation = 100.00 ft

Channel Slope = 1.000 %

Manning's n = 0.030

DISCHARGE

Method = Known Q

Known Q = 31.30 cfs

CALCULATION SAMPLE

Flow Depth Area Velocity WP n-value Crit Depth HGL EGL Max Shear Top Width

(cfs) (ft) (sqft) (ft/s) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (lb/sqft) (ft)

31.30 0.72 9.27 3.38 15.94 0.030 0.62 100.72 100.90 0.45 15.76

dlutg
Text Box
EXHIBIT #5



Channel Report
Project filename: Guenther.stx

Studio Express by Hydrology Studio v 1.0.0.9 01-12-2021

Pre-Platting 100 Channel 3

TRAPEZOIDAL

Bottom Width = 10.00 ft

Side Slope Left, z:1 = 4.00

Side Slope Right, z:1 = 4.00

Total Depth = 2.00 ft

Invert Elevation = 100.00 ft

Channel Slope = 1.000 %

Manning's n = 0.030

DISCHARGE

Method = Known Q

Known Q = 53.50 cfs

CALCULATION SAMPLE

Flow Depth Area Velocity WP n-value Crit Depth HGL EGL Max Shear Top Width

(cfs) (ft) (sqft) (ft/s) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (lb/sqft) (ft)

53.50 0.96 13.29 4.03 17.92 0.030 0.86 100.96 101.21 0.60 17.68

dlutg
Text Box
EXHIBIT #6



Channel Report
Project filename: Guenther.stx

Studio Express by Hydrology Studio v 1.0.0.9 01-12-2021

Post-Platting 100 Channel 4

TRAPEZOIDAL

Bottom Width = 10.00 ft

Side Slope Left, z:1 = 4.00

Side Slope Right, z:1 = 4.00

Total Depth = 2.00 ft

Invert Elevation = 100.00 ft

Channel Slope = 1.000 %

Manning's n = 0.030

DISCHARGE

Method = Known Q

Known Q = 55.60 cfs

CALCULATION SAMPLE

Flow Depth Area Velocity WP n-value Crit Depth HGL EGL Max Shear Top Width

(cfs) (ft) (sqft) (ft/s) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (lb/sqft) (ft)

55.60 0.98 13.64 4.08 18.08 0.030 0.88 100.98 101.24 0.61 17.84

dlutg
Text Box
EXHIBIT #7



Drainage Area #1- 10 year

Existing Conditions Area = 15 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i10 = 175/(Tc +18.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.37

L= 800 Ti = 12.3 i10 = 214/(Tc +26.7) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 6.3

K= 1 Tt = 1.33

Tc = 13.6

i10 = 5.40

Q=KCiA

Q= 30.1 cfs

Developed Conditions Area = 15 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i10 = 175/(Tc +18.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.38

L= 800 Ti = 12.1 i10 = 214/(Tc +26.7) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 6.3

K= 1 Tt = 1.33

Tc = 13.4

i10 = 5.43

Q=KCiA

Q= 31.3 cfs



Drainage Area #1 - 100 year

Existing Conditions Area = 15 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i100 = 256/(Tc +19.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.37

L= 800 Ti = 12.3 i100 = 331/(Tc +30) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 6.3

K= 1.25 Tt = 1.33

Tc = 13.6

i100 = 7.66

Q=KCiA

Q= 53.5 cfs

Developed Conditions Area = 15 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i100 = 256/(Tc +19.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.38

L= 800 Ti = 12.1 i100 = 331/(Tc +30) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 6.3

K= 1.25 Tt = 1.33

Tc = 13.4

i100 = 7.71

Q=KCiA

Q= 55.6 cfs



From:                                         Mitch Pleak
Sent:                                           Wednesday, January 13, 2021 11:44 AM
To:                                               Clements, Jared
Cc:                                               Voth, Krystal; Noll, Bill; Anderson, Lauren; 019-2831
Subject:                                     RE: Guenther & Barker Estates PZ & Olsson Review
 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Jared,
There is no further comments on the DR submi�ed and included in the link below.
 
h�ps://oaconsul�ng.sharefile.com/d-s2f2fd88ba7e84c68a1a6069a0684d4be
 
Sincerely,
 
Mitch Pleak
 
From: David Lutgen 
Sent: Tuesday, January 12, 2021 6:28 PM
To: Clements, Jared 
Cc: Joe Herring ; Mitch Pleak ; Voth, Krystal ; Noll, Bill 
Subject: Re: Guenther & Barker Estates PZ & Olsson Review
 
Jared,
 
The revised drainage report is a�ached.
 
Thanks
 
David Lutgen, P.E.
 
On Tue, Jan 12, 2021 at 11:58 AM Clements, Jared <JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov> wrote:

Good Morning Joe,
 
Please find the a�ached reviews from Olsson, as well as the PZ review below for Guenther and
Barker Estates. Please note we are awai�ng the final plat surveyor-review from Public Works
due to an oversight on my part. That being said, there should s�ll be ample �me to get final
revisions in by January 29, 2021.
 
PZ review of Preliminary & Final Plat

Please include adjacent PID’s
Adjust the name to reflect requested change (expected, just a reminder)
Add all property owners to the signature lines (if necessary)

 
Respec�ully,
 
 
Jared Clements
Planner II
Leavenworth County Planning and Zoning

mailto:mpleak@olsson.com
mailto:JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:019-2831@olsson.com
https://oaconsulting.sharefile.com/d-s2f2fd88ba7e84c68a1a6069a0684d4be
mailto:JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov


From:                                         Van Parys, David
Sent:                                           Monday, January 4, 2021 8:13 AM
To:                                               Clements, Jared
Subject:                                     RE: DEV-20-152 & 153 Preliminary & Final Plat - Guenther & Barker

Estates
 

Jared, No apparent legal concerns.
 
From: Clements, Jared 
Sent: Thursday, December 31, 2020 2:14 PM
To: Magaha, Chuck ; Van Parys, David ; Thorne, Eric ; Miller, Jamie ; firedistrict1@fd1lv.org; 'Rural
Water' ; Amanda.holloway@freestate.coop
Subject: DEV-20-152 & 153 Preliminary & Final Plat - Guenther & Barker Estates
 
The Leavenworth County Department of Planning & Zoning has received a request for a
Preliminary and Final Plat for a two-lot subdivision, Guenther & Barker Estates, on McIntyre Road.
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request.
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by January 7, 2021.
 
If you have any ques�ons or need addi�onal informa�on, please contact me at (913) 684-0465 or
at JClements@LeavenworthCounty.Gov
 
Thank you,
 
 
Jared Clements
Planner II
Leavenworth County Planning and Zoning
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212
Leavenworth, KS  66048
(913)684-0465
 

mailto:DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:JClements@LeavenworthCounty.Gov


From:                                         Amanda Tarwater
Sent:                                           Thursday, December 31, 2020 2:22 PM
To:                                               Clements, Jared
Subject:                                     Re: DEV-20-152 & 153 Preliminary & Final Plat - Guenther & Barker

Estates
 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
FreeState Electric has no objec�on to this request.
 
 
 
Thank you,
 

Amanda Tarwater
Member Account Coordinator

 

1-800-794-1989 | www.freestate.coop

From: "Clements, Jared" 
Date: Thursday, December 31, 2020 at 2:14 PM
To: "Magaha, Chuck" , "Van Parys, David" , "Thorne, Eric" , "Miller, Jamie" ,
"firedistrict1@fd1lv.org" , 'Rural Water' , Amanda Tarwater 
Subject: DEV-20-152 & 153 Preliminary & Final Plat - Guenther & Barker Estates
 
 

Warning: This message originated outside of the FEC organiza�on. Do not click links or open
a�achments unless you have validated the sender and know the content is safe. <=""
span="">

The Leavenworth County Department of Planning & Zoning has received a request for a
Preliminary and Final Plat for a two-lot subdivision, Guenther & Barker Estates, on McIntyre Road.
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request.
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by January 7, 2021.
 
If you have any ques�ons or need addi�onal informa�on, please contact me at (913) 684-0465 or
at JClements@LeavenworthCounty.Gov
 
Thank you,
 
 
Jared Clements
Planner II
Leavenworth County Planning and Zoning
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212

mailto:amanda.holloway@freestate.coop
mailto:JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov


From:                                         Rural Water

Sent:                                           Saturday, January 2, 2021 12:06 PM

To:                                               Clements, Jared

Subject:                                     RWD#8 RE: Dev-20-152 & 153

 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.

 

Mr. Clements:

 

RWD#8 provides water service to : 16684 McIntyre Rd.--Brian Guenther

Mr. Guenther is not in good standing with RWD#8 as he has failed to pay a remaining balance of

$522.02 on the installa�on of his water meter.

I believe water service could be made available to the subdivided lot if the debt is paid and proper
applica�on is made to the Board of RWD#8.

There is a 4" water main on the north side of McIntyre Road.

If you have any further ques�ons please contact me at: 913-796-2164.

 

--

Becky Fousek

Office Manager

Rural Water District #8-LV CO

mailto:rwd8lv@gmail.com
mailto:JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov


From:                                         Rural Water

Sent:                                           Monday, January 4, 2021 1:58 PM

To:                                               Clements, Jared

Subject:                                     Re: RWD#8 RE: Dev-20-152 & 153

 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.

 

Mr. Clements:

 

Answers:

a. There are no fire hydrants adjacent to this property

b. No fire hydrants the water line is a 4" water line not large enough to support a fire hydrant or
fire protec�on

c  There are no plans to upgrade the line to support fire hydrants.

RWD#8 

Becky Fousek. Office Manager

 

On Mon, Jan 4, 2021 at 12:22 PM Clements, Jared <JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov> wrote:

Good A�ernoon,

 

Thank you for your response, I will let the applicant know that there is an issue with their
standing with your District.

Secondly, would you mind answering the following ques�ons regarding this proposal?

 

a. Are there exis�ng fire hydrants that are adjacent to this property?

 

b. Would the water district allow fire hydrants to be installed on the exis�ng service line(s)
in the area of the proposed plat boundary?

 

mailto:rwd8lv@gmail.com
mailto:JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov


c. Does the water district have plans to upgrade the service in this vicinity to such a level
that fire hydrants can be installed in the foreseeable future, or within a set number of
years? If so, what would the improvements consist of?

Thank you,

 

 

Jared Clements

Planner II

Leavenworth County Planning and Zoning

300 Walnut St. Ste. 212

Leavenworth, KS  66048

(913)684-0465

 

 

 

From: Rural Water <rwd8lv@gmail.com> 
Sent: Saturday, January 2, 2021 12:06 PM
To: Clements, Jared <JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Subject: RWD#8 RE: Dev-20-152 & 153

 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you
trust the sender and know the content is safe.

 

Mr. Clements:

 

RWD#8 provides water service to : 16684 McIntyre Rd.--Brian Guenther

Mr. Guenther is not in good standing with RWD#8 as he has failed to pay a remaining balance of

$522.02 on the installa�on of his water meter.

I believe water service could be made available to the subdivided lot if the debt is paid and
proper applica�on is made to the Board of RWD#8.

There is a 4" water main on the north side of McIntyre Road.

If you have any further ques�ons please contact me at: 913-796-2164.

 

mailto:rwd8lv@gmail.com
mailto:JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov


--

Becky Fousek

Office Manager

Rural Water District #8-LV CO

 

--

Becky Fousek

Office Manager

Rural Water District #8-LV CO







February 10, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 1 

***Consent Agenda*** 
Case No. DEV-20-154 & 155 

Tiner Acres 
Preliminary and Final Plat 

 
Staff Report – Planning Commission      February 10, 2021 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
Applicant/                   Lanny & Nanette Tiner 
Property Owner: 19050 182nd Street 

Tonganoxie, KS 66086 
 
Agent: Herring Surveying  
 
Legal Description:      A tract of land in the southwest of Section 5, Township 11 South, Range 22 

East of the 6th P.M, in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 
 

Parcel Size: ± 30 acres 
 
Zoning/Land Use: RR-2.5, Rural Residential 2.5-acre minimum size parcels 
 
Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Mixed-Use land use category.   
 
Parcel ID No.:   183-05-0-00-00-010.02 

 
Planner:  Jared Clements 
 

REPORT: 
 

Request   
The applicant is requesting a Preliminary and Final Plat for a 2-lot subdivision.  
 
Adjacent Land Use 
The surrounding properties are residences and farms on varying sized parcels ranging from 1 acre to over 
140 acres in size.   
 
Flood Plain   
There are no Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel per FEMA Firm Map 20103C????G July 16, 2015.  
 
Utilities/Services 
Sewer: Private septic system  
Fire: Stranger 
Water: Suburban Water 
Electric: Evergy 
 
Access/Streets  
The property is accessed by 182nd Street. This road is a County Collector with a gravel surface ± 22’ wide. 
 
Agency Comments 
See attached comments – Email – Mitch Pleak – Public Works, January 18, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Steve Tufte – County Reviewer, January 6, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – David Van Parys – County Counselor, January 4, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Matt Roecker – Evergy, January 4, 2021 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 



February 10, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 2 

Findings 
1. The proposed subdivision is consistent with the zoning district of RR 2.5; Rural Residential Zoning 2.5-

acre minimum size parcels. 
 
The proposed subdivision is consistent with the zoning district of RR 2.5; Rural Residential Zoning 2.5-
acre minimum size parcels and meets the lot-depth to lot-width ratio of 3.5:1 or 4:1, have the minimum 
frontage of 200’, Minimum lot size of 2.5 acres.  

 
2. The property is not within a sewer district boundary nor is it within 660 feet of the incorporated limits of a 

municipality; therefore, a waiver to the requirement of allowing private septic systems is supported by 
staff. A private sewage disposal permit may be issued per Leavenworth County Sanitary Code 
requirements.    
 
Any further subdividing of any lot within this subdivision shall require the installation of public sanitary 
sewer or connection to an existing public sanitary sewer. 

 
3. The proposed subdivision is in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan. 

 
Subdivision Classification 
This is classified as a Class ‘C” Subdivision. According to the Leavenworth County Zoning & Subdivision 
regulations, a Class “C” Subdivision is any subdivision in which all the lots lie within the Rural Growth Area of 
Leavenworth County. 
 
Staff is supportive of a waiver of the requirement to connect to a sanitary sewer system as sanitary sewers 
are not located within 660’ of the subdivision. (See condition 4.) 

 
Staff Comments   
This is a 2-lot subdivision on 182nd Street. The proposal is consistent with Zoning and Subdivision 
Regulations, as well as the comprehensive plan. Lot 1 is 15.52 acres and Lot 2 is 14.58acres. Both lots are 
accessed via 182nd Street. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The staff recommends approval of Case No.DEV-20-154 & 155, Preliminary and Final Plat for Tiner Acres, 
with the following conditions: 
 

1. Building permits shall be required for any new construction. 
 

2. Erosion control shall be used when designing and constructing driveways.  A form of sediment control 
shall be installed before work begins and maintained throughout the time that the land disturbing 
activities are taking place.  Re-vegetation of all disturbed sites shall be completed within 45 days after 
completion of final grading weather permitting. 
 

3. The applicant shall adhere to the following memorandums:  
a. Mitch Pleak – Public Works, January 18, 2021 
b. Steve Tufte – January 6, February 1, 2021 

 
4.  A waiver for the use of private septic systems within this subdivision is granted with this approval. 

 
5. At the time of development, fire hydrants shall be required if necessary infrastructure is available. 
 
6. After approval of this subdivision by the Board of County Commission, all conditions listed shall be 

adhered to and copies shall be provided to the Planning and Zoning Department within 30 days. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



February 10, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 3 

 
ACTION OPTIONS: 

 
1. Recommend approval of Case No. DEV-20-154 & 155, Preliminary and Final Plat for Tiner Acres, to 

the Board of County Commission, with or without conditions; or 
 

2. Recommend denial of Case No. DEV-20-154 & 155, Preliminary and Final Plat for Tiner Acres, to the 
Board of County Commission for the following reasons; or  

 
3. Continue the hearing to another date, time, and place because; 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Aerial Map 
Memorandums  
Preliminary and Final Plat 
 

 



From:                                         Clements, Jared
Sent:                                           Friday, January 8, 2021 4:08 PM
To:                                               'Joe Herring'
Cc:                                               Noll, Bill; 'David Lutgen'; Voth, Krystal; 'mpleak@olsson.com'
Subject:                                     Tiner Acres Review Packet
A�achments:                          TinerSubdReview.pdf; TinerSubdReview.txt; Tiner Acres Drainage

Report.pdf; Tiner Acres FINAL review.pdf; Tiner Acres PRELIM
review.pdf

 
Good A�ernoon Joe,
 
Please find the a�ached reviews of Tiner Acres Drainage Report, Preliminary, and Final Plat, as
well a comments from Planning & Zoning Staff below. Please make these adjustments and receive
approval from our reviewers prior to Friday, January 29th, 2021.
 

Label Final Plat as Final Plat.
Correct the Range number on the Vicinity Map.

 
Respec�ully,
 
 
Jared Clements
Planner II
Leavenworth County
Planning & Zoning
 
From: Joe Herring 
Sent: Wednesday, December 23, 2020 1:50 PM
To: PZ ; Malnicof, Wayne 
Subject: Fw: TIner Acres
 
No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Please see a�ached documents
 
Thank you - Joe Herring
__________________________________
J.Herring Inc., dba,Herring Surveying Company
315 N. 5th Street, Leavenworth, KS 66048
913-651-3858  - ROCK CHALK!
 
 
 

From: Joe Herring 
Sent: Wednesday, December 23, 2020 11:32 AM
To: Joe Herring 
Subject: TIner Acres
 
 
 

mailto:JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:herringsurveying@outlook.com
mailto:BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:dlutgen72@gmail.com
mailto:KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:mpleak@olsson.com


                                 TINER ACRES SUBD.

1. Label Final Plat, is labeled as Preliminary

2. Need closures of subd. and Lot 1 & Lot 2, does not close to our calculations, 
appears to be error in the bearing/distance of the middle east-west line between the
lots

3. Record bearings and distances to be shown alongside the measured ones on the 
drawing and labeled as such (per KS Minimum Stds), there is a large descrepancy 
among the drawing distances and bearings and those record ones, see below.

4. Would highly recommend using the dimensions shown on drawing (I'm assuming they 
are measured) as your description, labeled as "Metes & Bounds Description" or 
"Surveyors Description", put that on TOP and place the record description BELOW, 
labeling that "Formerly Described in Book___ & Page___", or if you need to show the 
entire record description, would label that as "Formerly Described As". If you 
intend to hold and use the record description, all the "call outs"- bearings, 
distances, the exception lines etc. need to be shown on the drawing, (per KS Min. 
Stds) so that the description can be reasonably followed.

5. NW cor. S.1/2 SW1/4 to be labeled on drawing, also label N. Line S.1/2 SW1/4 and 
W. Line SW1/4

6. POB appears to be on wrong corner

7. Put POB & POC in Legend

8. Place Section corner ties appropriately on drawing, did not receive reference 
reports, file them to county surveyor office

9. 3 North/south dashed lines in center drawing need labeling/dimension/explanation,
directly by the lines, another north-south dashed line near east edge plat, the same
labeling

10. Lot 1 and Lot 2 labels should be in center of the lots

11. Some of symbols in Legend do not apply to this drawing, you may want to strip 
those out

12. Some typo's to correct as shown in red on drawing

13. Signature review certification placed on drawing as shown below;

                               COUNTY REVIEWER CERTIFICATION

                               I hereby certify that this document
                                 has been reviewed by me and is



                            being filed for survey information only.

                       __________________________________________
                                Stephan C. Tufte, KS PS No. 1252
                                 Leavenworth County Reviewer





Label Line

label and provide
dimension of
easement.

1-04-21

OLSSON REVIEW



label and provide
dimension of
easement.

Label Line

1-04-21

OLSSON REVIEW





dlutgen72@gmail.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tiner Acres 

Leavenworth County Kansas 

Drainage Report 

 Prepared December 12, 2020 

Revised January 9, 2021 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



dlutgen72@gmail.com 

 

Parcel Information - The 30-acre (+/-) parcel is located north of State Avenue on the east side 182nd 

Street in Leavenworth County KS.  The parcel is zoned RR 2.5.  Approximately 8 acres of the parcel is 

wooded.  There is a home and barn in the northwest side of the property and the remainder of the 

parcel is pasture. 

Existing Conditions – The site can be divided into two drainage areas, see exhibit #1.  All storm water 

runoff from the site flows to the northeast corner of State Ave & 182nd St where it then flows west into 

Stranger Creek.    

 

A composite c value was calculated for each drainage area as shown in the table below.  The composite 

c value is based on the soil type, slopes, and existing land use, see Exhibits #2 and #3.   

Existing   Acres in each Drainage Area 

  c value DA #1 DA #2     

Wooded 0.30 8.0 0.0     

Pasture 0.30 14.8 7.2     

Crops 0.50 0.0 0.0     

Impervious 0.90 0.1 0.0     

Composite c   0.30 0.30     

 

composite c = 

(Wooded Acres * 0.30 + Pasture Acres * 0.30 + Crop Acres * 0.50 

+ Impervious * 0.90) 

Total Acres 

 

Developed Conditions – The proposed development will create 2 residential building lots that are both 

approx. 15 acres in size.  The developed storm water runoff calculations include 10,000 sq ft of 

impervious area for lot #2.  This impervious area will account for the driveway, house footprint, and 

outbuilding.  The remainder of the lot, outside of the wooded areas, is assumed to be maintained as 

pasture.  A c value of 0.30 is used for pasture area while a c value of 0.90 is used for the impervious 

areas.  A composite c value for each drainage area was calculated as shown below. 

Developed   Acres in each Drainage Area 

  c value DA #1 DA #2     

Wooded 0.30 8.0 0.0     

Pasture 0.30 14.6 7.2     

Crops 0.50 0.0 0.0     

Impervious 0.90 0.3 0.0     

Composite c   0.31 0.30     

 



dlutgen72@gmail.com 

composite c = 

(Wooded Acres * 0.30 + Pasture Acres * 0.30 + Crop Acres * 0.50 

+ Impervious * 0.90) 

Total Acres 

 

The storm water runoff for existing and developed conditions is summarized in the following tables.  

Calculations for the storm water runoff are included with the report. 

 DA #1  

  Q10 Q100 

Existing 33.7 60.6 

Developed 35.0 62.9 

Change 4% 4% 

 

The increase in storm water runoff results in a 0.01-ft rise at the property line in a 10-yr storm and a 

0.02-ft rise in a 100-yr storm, see exhibits #4 – #7. 

 

Conclusion – The creation of an additional building lot on this parcel of ground results in a 4% increase 

in storm water runoff from the property.   

 

 

 



dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Text Box
NORTH   NTS

dlutg
Text Box
DA #2

dlutg
Text Box
DA #1

dlutg
Text Box
Wooded Area

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Text Box
EXHIBIT #1



Generated by a Trial Version of NetCentric Technologies’ CommonLook® Acrobat® Plug-in. www.net-centric.com

TABLE 1 Values of Runoff Coefficient C 
URBAN AREAS: 

Type of drainage area Runoff coefficient C 
 

Lawns: 
Sandy soil, flat 2%  
Sandy soil, average, 2 - 7%  
Sandy soil, steep, 7%  
Heavy soil, flat, 2%  
Heavy soil, average, 2 - 7%  
Heavy soil, steep, 7% 

 0.05 - 0.10 
 
 0.10 - 0.15 
 0.15 - 0.20 
 0.13-0.17  
 
 0.18 - 0.22  
 0.25 - 0.35 

Business: 
Downtown areas Neighborhood areas 

0.70 - 0.95  
0.50.0.70 

Residential: 
Single-family areas  
Multi units, detached Multi units,  
attached Suburban  
Apartment dwelling areas 

0.30 - 0.50  
0.40 - 0.60 
0.60 - 0.75 
0.25 - 0.40 
0.50 - 0.70 

Industrial: 
Light areas 
Heavy areas 

 
0.50 - 0.80 
0.60 - 0.90  

Parks, cemeteries 0.10 - 0.25 
Playgrounds  0.20 - 0.35 
Railroad yard areas 0.20 - 0.40 
Unimproved areas 0.10 - 0.30 
Streets: 
Asphaltic  
Concrete  
Brick  

0.70 - 0.95 
0.80 - 0.95 
0.70 - 0.85 

Drives and walks 
Roofs  

0.75 - 0.85 
0.75 - 0.95 

 
 
AGRICULTURAL AREAS: 

Topography 
 and  

Vegetation 

Runoff Coefficient C Soil Texture 
Soil Texture 

Open Sandy Loam Clay and Silt Loam Tight Clay 
Woodland 
Flat 0 - 5% Slope  
Rolling 5 - 10% Slope 
Hilly 10 - 30% Slope 

 
0.10 
0.25 
0.30 
 

 
0.30 
0.35 
0.50 
 

 
0.40 
0.50 
0.60 
 

Pasture 
Flat 
Rolling 
Hilly 

0.10 
0.16 
0.22 

0.30 
0.36 
0.42 
 

0.40 
0.55 
0.60 

 

Cultivated 
Flat 
Rolling 
Hilly 

 

 
0.30 
0.40 
0.52 
 

 
0.50 
0.60 
0.72 
 

 
0.60 
0.70 
0.82 

 
                    
           
 
 

dlutg
Highlight

dlutg
Snapshot

dlutg
Text Box
Source -

dlutg
Text Box
EXHIBIT #2

dlutg
Highlight

dlutg
Highlight



���������� !��"� 
#!$ ��%��&!$�'��%&"�

(
)����������
�
*������������
�����
����������
�

;

ABC6CDEFGHIJEKL6>GM6AGDHBIED666NEDKGD6HEEDOJKBIGPL6>QR@?
. +S. 2.. T.. U..

VGGI
. WS U. +X. ,Y.

AGIGDP
ABC6RHBZGL69L3[\7=6J]6CDJKIGO6EK6̂6ZBKOPHBCG6_99̀6a6@b<̀c6PdGGIb

����������	
	��

�������������� ������������	 ���	�������� �	��	���������

���� � !"#$%&' $% "(!)%�%$"%�%*+,-+#$%
& "*+&)%+,".+.

//0� �/012

��3� 4,5#.6%&' $6%- (6% "(!)%/%$"%�%
*+,-+#$%& "*+&

�07 30�2

��3� 4,5#.6%&' $6%- (6% "(!)%�%$"%�%
*+,-+#$%& "*+&)%+,".+.

/808 37032

�37/ 9(:#++%- (6% "(!)%�%$"%8%
*+,-+#$%& "*+&)%+,".+.

�01 /�0�2

;������������	��������	�	�� <=>? ?@@>@A

dlutg
Text Box
EXHIBIT #3



Channel Report
Project Name: New Project

Studio Express by Hydrology Studio v 1.0.0.8 01-09-2021

Pre-Platting 10 yr Channel 1

TRAPEZOIDAL

Bottom Width = 10.00 ft

Side Slope Left, z:1 = 4.00

Side Slope Right, z:1 = 4.00

Total Depth = 2.00 ft

Invert Elevation = 100.00 ft

Channel Slope = 1.000 %

Manning's n = 0.030

DISCHARGE

Method = Known Q

Known Q = 33.70 cfs

CALCULATION SAMPLE

Flow Depth Area Velocity WP n-value Crit Depth HGL EGL Max Shear Top Width

(cfs) (ft) (sqft) (ft/s) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (lb/sqft) (ft)

33.70 0.75 9.75 3.46 16.18 0.030 0.65 100.75 100.94 0.47 16.00

dlutg
Text Box
EXHIBIT #4



Channel Report
Project Name: New Project

Studio Express by Hydrology Studio v 1.0.0.8 01-09-2021

Post-Platting 10 yr Channel 2

TRAPEZOIDAL

Bottom Width = 10.00 ft

Side Slope Left, z:1 = 4.00

Side Slope Right, z:1 = 4.00

Total Depth = 2.00 ft

Invert Elevation = 100.00 ft

Channel Slope = 1.000 %

Manning's n = 0.030

DISCHARGE

Method = Known Q

Known Q = 35.00 cfs

CALCULATION SAMPLE

Flow Depth Area Velocity WP n-value Crit Depth HGL EGL Max Shear Top Width

(cfs) (ft) (sqft) (ft/s) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (lb/sqft) (ft)

35.00 0.76 9.91 3.53 16.27 0.030 0.67 100.76 100.95 0.47 16.08

dlutg
Text Box
EXHIBIT #5



Channel Report
Project Name: New Project

Studio Express by Hydrology Studio v 1.0.0.8 01-09-2021

Pre-Platting 100 yr Channel 3

TRAPEZOIDAL

Bottom Width = 10.00 ft

Side Slope Left, z:1 = 4.00

Side Slope Right, z:1 = 4.00

Total Depth = 2.00 ft

Invert Elevation = 100.00 ft

Channel Slope = 1.000 %

Manning's n = 0.030

DISCHARGE

Method = Known Q

Known Q = 60.60 cfs

CALCULATION SAMPLE

Flow Depth Area Velocity WP n-value Crit Depth HGL EGL Max Shear Top Width

(cfs) (ft) (sqft) (ft/s) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (lb/sqft) (ft)

60.60 1.03 14.54 4.17 18.49 0.030 0.92 101.03 101.30 0.64 18.24

dlutg
Text Box
EXHIBIT #6



Channel Report
Project Name: New Project

Studio Express by Hydrology Studio v 1.0.0.8 01-09-2021

Post-Platting 100 yr Channel 4

TRAPEZOIDAL

Bottom Width = 10.00 ft

Side Slope Left, z:1 = 4.00

Side Slope Right, z:1 = 4.00

Total Depth = 2.00 ft

Invert Elevation = 100.00 ft

Channel Slope = 1.000 %

Manning's n = 0.030

DISCHARGE

Method = Known Q

Known Q = 62.90 cfs

CALCULATION SAMPLE

Flow Depth Area Velocity WP n-value Crit Depth HGL EGL Max Shear Top Width

(cfs) (ft) (sqft) (ft/s) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (lb/sqft) (ft)

62.90 1.05 14.91 4.22 18.66 0.030 0.94 101.05 101.33 0.66 18.40

dlutg
Text Box
EXHIBIT #7



Drainage Area #1- 10 year

Existing Conditions Area = 22.9 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i10 = 175/(Tc +18.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.30

L= 1080 Ti = 15.1 i10 = 214/(Tc +26.7) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 4.5

K= 1 Tt = 1.80

Tc = 16.9

i10 = 4.91

Q=KCiA

Q= 33.7 cfs

Developed Conditions Area = 22.9 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i10 = 175/(Tc +18.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.31

L= 1080 Ti = 14.9 i10 = 214/(Tc +26.7) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 4.5

K= 1 Tt = 1.80

Tc = 16.7

i10 = 4.93

Q=KCiA

Q= 35.0 cfs



Drainage Area #1 - 100 year

Existing Conditions Area = 22.9 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i100 = 256/(Tc +19.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.30

L= 1080 Ti = 15.1 i100 = 331/(Tc +30) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 4.5

K= 1.25 Tt = 1.80

Tc = 16.9

i100 = 7.06

Q=KCiA

Q= 60.6 cfs

Developed Conditions Area = 22.9 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i100 = 256/(Tc +19.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.31

L= 1080 Ti = 14.9 i100 = 331/(Tc +30) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 4.5

K= 1.25 Tt = 1.80

Tc = 16.7

i100 = 7.09

Q=KCiA

Q= 62.9 cfs



From:                                         Mitch Pleak
Sent:                                           Monday, January 11, 2021 2:47 PM
To:                                               Clements, Jared
Cc:                                               Noll, Bill; Voth, Krystal; 019-2831; Anderson, Lauren
Subject:                                     RE: Tiner Acres Review Packet
 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Jared,
Olsson has no further comments on the Drainage Report submi�ed and in the link below:
 
h�ps://oaconsul�ng.sharefile.com/d-s5398d388ed354ea7a7b6b676b1092e4a
 
Thanks,
 
Mitch Pleak
From: David Lutgen 
Sent: Saturday, January 9, 2021 7:42 AM
To: Clements, Jared 
Cc: Joe Herring ; Noll, Bill ; Voth, Krystal ; Mitch Pleak 
Subject: Re: Tiner Acres Review Packet
 
Jared,
 
Revised drainage report for Tiner Acres is a�ached.
 
Thanks
 
David Lutgen, P.E.
 
On Fri, Jan 8, 2021 at 4:07 PM Clements, Jared <JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov> wrote:

Good A�ernoon Joe,
 
Please find the a�ached reviews of Tiner Acres Drainage Report, Preliminary, and Final Plat, as
well a comments from Planning & Zoning Staff below. Please make these adjustments and
receive approval from our reviewers prior to Friday, January 29th, 2021.
 

Label Final Plat as Final Plat.
Correct the Range number on the Vicinity Map.

 
Respec�ully,
 
 
Jared Clements
Planner II
Leavenworth County
Planning & Zoning
 
From: Joe Herring <herringsurveying@outlook.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, December 23, 2020 1:50 PM

mailto:mpleak@olsson.com
mailto:JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:019-2831@olsson.com
mailto:LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov
https://oaconsulting.sharefile.com/d-s5398d388ed354ea7a7b6b676b1092e4a
mailto:JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:herringsurveying@outlook.com


From:                                         Van Parys, David
Sent:                                           Monday, January 4, 2021 8:12 AM
To:                                               Clements, Jared
Subject:                                     RE: DEV-20-154 & 155 Preliminary and Final Plat - Tiner Acres
 

Jared, No apparent legal concerns.
 
From: Clements, Jared 
Sent: Thursday, December 31, 2020 2:03 PM
To: Magaha, Chuck ; Van Parys, David ; Thorne, Eric ; Miller, Jamie ; s�dchief1760@gmail.com;
'Tyler Lee Rebel' ; 'Travis@SuburbanWaterInc.com' 
Subject: DEV-20-154 & 155 Preliminary and Final Plat - Tiner Acres
 
The Leavenworth County Department of Planning & Zoning has received a request for a
Preliminary & Final Plat for Tiner Acres, a two-Lot subdivision near 182nd Street and State Avenue.
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request.
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by January 7, 2021.
 
If you have any ques�ons or need addi�onal informa�on, please contact me at (913) 684-0465 or
at JClements@LeavenworthCounty.Gov
 
Thank you,
 
 
Jared Clements
Planner II
Leavenworth County Planning and Zoning
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212
Leavenworth, KS  66048
(913)684-0465
 

mailto:DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:JClements@LeavenworthCounty.Gov


From:                                         Ma� Roecker
Sent:                                           Monday, January 4, 2021 3:06 PM
To:                                               PZ
Subject:                                     RE: DEV-20-154 & 155 Preliminary and Final Plat - Tiner Acres
 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 

Internal Use Only
 
LV CO:
 
On behalf of the owners, the purpose of this e-mail is to inform you that Westar Energy is the
electric u�lity provider for within 154 & 155  of Tiner acres Leavenworth County. 
 
Thank you,
 
Ma� Roecker
Evergy
TD Designer III
ma�.roecker@evergy.com
913-667-5116
 
 
 
DEV-20-154 & 155 Preliminary and Final Plat - Tiner Acres

mailto:Matt.Roecker@evergy.com
mailto:/O=Leavenworth-CJC/OU=CJC/cn=Recipients/cn=PZ@leavenworthcounty.org
mailto:matt.roecker@evergy.com






February 10, 2021                                  Leavenworth County Planning Commission 1 

***Consent Agenda*** 
Case No. DEV-20-156/157 

Sammons Estates 
Preliminary and Final Plat with Cross Access Easement 

 
Staff Report – Planning Commission      February 10, 2021 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
Applicant/                   Richard & Georgiann Sammons 
Property Owner: 17344 Eisenhower Road 

Leavenworth, KS 66048 
 
Agent:    
 
Legal Description:      A tract of land in the east ½ of Section 17, Township 9 South, Range 22 

East of the 6th P.M, in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 
 
Location: 17344 Eisenhower Road, located nearly ½ mile to the west of the 

Leavenworth/Lansing City Limits. 
 

Parcel Size: ± 85 acres 
 
Zoning/Land Use: RR-2.5, Rural Residential 2.5-acre minimum size parcels 
 
Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Mixed Residential land use category.   
 
Parcel ID No.:   104-17-0-00-00-002.00 

 
Planner:  Krystal A. Voth  
 

REPORT: 
 

Request   
The applicant is requesting a Preliminary and Final Plat for a four-lot subdivision with a cross access 
easement (private driveway).   
 
Adjacent Land Use 
The surrounding properties are residences and farms on varying sized parcels ranging from 1 acre to over 
140 acres in size.   
 
Flood Plain   
There are no Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel per FEMA Firm Map 20103C0150G July 16, 2015.  
 
Utilities/Services 
Sewer: Private septic system  
Fire: Fire 1 
Water: RWD 8  
Electric:  Evergy   
 
Access/Streets  
The property is accessed by Eisenhower Road which is a County Arterial with a hard surface approximately 
30’ wide. The Cross Access Easement will provide access to each of the four lots.  
 
 Agency Comments 
See attached comments – Memo – Olsson – Public Works, January 27, 2021 
See attached comments – Memo –Becky Fousek – Rural Water District 8, January 16, 2021 
 
 
 



February 10, 2021                                  Leavenworth County Planning Commission 2 

 
Findings 

1. The proposed subdivision is consistent with the zoning district of RR 2.5; Rural Residential Zoning 
2.5 -acre minimum size parcels. 
 

2. The proposed subdivision meets the requirements for a Cross Access Easement. 
 

3. The property is not within a sewer district boundary or is within 660 feet of the incorporated limits of a 
municipality; therefore, a waiver to the requirement of allowing private septic systems is supported by 
staff. A private sewage disposal permit may be issued per Leavenworth County Sanitary Code 
requirements.  
 

4. The water district currently has adequate infrastructure to supply water to the lots within this 
subdivision but does not/cannot provide fire protection. 
 

5. Additional access off of Eisenhower Road will not be granted. 
 

6. The subdivision meets the zoning district requirements. 
 

 
Subdivision Classification 
This is classified as a Class “C” Subdivision. According to the Leavenworth County Zoning & Subdivision 
regulations, a Class “C” Subdivision is any subdivision in which all the lots lie within the Rural Growth Area of 
Leavenworth County. Staff is supportive of a waiver of the requirement to connect to a sanitary sewer system 
as sanitary sewers are not located within 660’ of the subdivision. 

 
Staff Comments   
The applicant has requested a four-lot subdivision. The subdivision will be provided access off of Eisenhower 
Road via a cross access easement. The easement essentially functions as a private roadway. The lots vary 
in size from 5.5 acres to over 60 acres in size. Additional access will not be provided off of Eisenhower.  
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The staff recommends approval of Case No.DEV-20-156/157, Preliminary and Final Plat for Sammons 
Estates, a Cross Access Easement Plat, with the following conditions: 
 

1. Building permits shall be required for any new construction. 
 

2. Additional access off of Eisenhower shall not be allowed. 
 

3. Erosion control shall be used when designing and constructing driveways.  A form of sediment control 
shall be installed before work begins and maintained throughout the time that the land disturbing 
activities are taking place.  Re-vegetation of all disturbed sites shall be completed within 45 days after 
completion of final grading weather permitting. 
 

4. The applicant shall adhere to the following memorandums:  
a. Olsson  – Public Works, January 27, 2021 
 

5.  A waiver for the use of private septic systems within this subdivision is granted with this approval. 
 
6. The developer shall work with the water distict at the time of development regarding the installation of   
fire hydrants.  
    
7. After approval of this subdivision by the Board of County Commission, all conditions listed shall be 

adhered to and copies shall be provided to the Planning and Zoning Department within 30 days. 
 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
 

1. Recommend approval of Case No DEV-20-156/157, Preliminary and Final Plat for Sammons Estates, 
a Cross Access Easement, to the Board of County Commission, with or without conditions; or 
 



February 10, 2021                                  Leavenworth County Planning Commission 3 

2. Recommend denial of Case DEV-20-156/157, Preliminary and Final Plat for Sammons Estates, a 
Cross Access Easement, to the Board of County Commission for the following reasons; or  

 
3. Continue the hearing to another date, time, and place because; 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Aerial Map 
Memorandums  
Preliminary and Final Plat 
 

 



Sammons Estates

2,331.7

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

Feet2,331.70

Notes

Legend

1,165.87

1 in. = 1166ft.

This Cadastral Map is for informational purposes only.  It does not purport to
represent a property boundary survey of the parcels shown and shall not be

used for conveyances or the establishment of property boundaries.

Parcel

City Limit Line

Major Road

<all other values>

70

Road

Railroad

Section

Section Boundaries









1

Voth, Krystal

From: Rural Water <rwd8lv@gmail.com>

Sent: Saturday, January 16, 2021 7:29 AM

To: Voth, Krystal

Subject: Re: Request for Comment - Three lot subdivision.

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 
Krystal,  
In response to your email about the Sammons Estate: 
a.  RWD#8 does have a waterline on the south side of Eis Rd. 4" waterline and there is a 2" waterline near the west 
property line and the east property line but, not 
across the frontage of the property line because there is a rock ledge. 
b.  4" waterline on southside of Eis. Rd. and 2" waterlines on west property line and east property line NO fire hydrants 
c.  The water district would not allow fire hydrants 
d. The water district does not have any future plans to upgrade the service line to support fire hydrants. 
NOTE:  The proposed plat is not a typical public road accessed plat, therefore the property owner's would have to meet 
with RWD#8 Board of Directors and come to an agreement  
about the water line and water meter locations.  Due to the amount of rock on the property frontage, there will be 
added costs for boring the service line. 
 
Becky Fousek 
Office Manager for RWD#8 
 
On Fri, Jan 8, 2021 at 10:37 AM Voth, Krystal <KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov> wrote: 

Good morning, 

  

Our office has received an application for a three lot cross access easement subdivision. Your written responses to the 
questions below are greatly appreciated by Monday, January 18. Thank you and have a great weekend! 

  

a.  Does the water district have existing service lines in the vicinity of the proposed plat 
boundary to provide potable water to the lots of the subdivision? 

  

b.  What is the size and location of the water line(s) and fire hydrants that are adjacent to this 
property? 

c.  Would the water district allow fire hydrants to be installed on the existing service line(s) in 
the area of the proposed plat boundary? 



2

d. Does the water district have plans to upgrade the service in this vicinity to such a level that fire 
hydrants can be installed in the foreseeable future, or within a set number of years? If so, 
what would the improvements consist of? 

  

Respectfully, 

  

Krystal A. Voth, CFM 

Director 

Planning & Zoning  

Leavenworth County 

913.684.0461 

  

 
 
 
--  

Becky Fousek 
Office Manager 
Rural Water District #8-LV CO 



add note that Lot 1
and 4 access is
limited from the cross
access easement
only.

01-27-2021

OLSSON REVIEW

kvoth
Callout
No Access

kvoth
Callout
Standard Utility Easement


kvoth
Textbox
Planning & Zoning Comments Added 1-27-2021



cross

adjust B.S.L. per
center of the CAE.

Lot limits not
clear

B.S.L. does not
continue south

cross

Add:  Leavenworth
County shall bear no
responsibility for any
maintenance and
upkeep of the Cross
Access Easement,
drive, and drive
appurtenances.

Verify, GIS shows 2.5

01-27-2021

OLSSON REVIEW
add note that Lot 1
and 4 access is
limited from the cross
access easement
only.

kvoth
Callout
Scale does not meet requirement


kvoth
Callout
No Access


kvoth
Textbox
Planning & Zoning Comments Added 1-27-2021




HOME OWNER’S ASSOCATION 

SAMMONS ESTATES 

LEAVENWORTH COUNTY, KANSAS 

 

This Home Owner’s Association is for SAMMONS ESTATES, a Cross Access Easement Subdivision in the 

East Half of Section 17, Township 9 South, Range 22 East of the 6th P.M., in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 

 

Said SAMMONS ESTATES creates an area known as a Cross Access Easement (C.A.E.). 

 

Said area is to be shared and used by all owners/parties within SAMMONS ESTATES for the rights of access 

and for utilities to be allowed to service all Lots (all utilities must be underground). 

 

All Lot Owners are responsible for 25% of the total cost of maintenance of the C.A.E. area. 

 

The Home Owners Association is comprised of the owners of Lots 1 thru 4, SAMMONS ESTATES. 

Lots 1 thru 3 will each have a single vote per Lot in determining the maintenance issues. 

Lot 4 will have 2 votes in determining the maintenance issues. 

 

To change any portion of this Home Owners Association document – all owners must sign off and be in 

agreement. 

 

 



dlutgen72@gmail.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sammons Development 

Leavenworth County Kansas 

Drainage Report 

 Prepared December 16, 2020 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



dlutgen72@gmail.com 

Parcel Information - The 85.6-acre (+/-) parcel is located on the north side of McIntyre Road in 

Leavenworth County KS.  The address to the home on Lot #4 is 17344 Eisenhower Road.  The parcel is 

zoned RR 2.5.  

Existing Conditions – The site can be divided into two drainage areas, see exhibit #1.   

 

A composite c value was calculated for each drainage area as shown in the table below.  The composite 

c value is based on the soil type, slopes, and existing land use, see Exhibits #2 and #3.   

Existing   Acres in each Drainage Area 

  c value DA #1 DA #2     

Wooded 0.50 48.4 13.9     

Pasture 0.42 16.0 7.0     

Crops 0.72 0.0 0.0     

Impervious 0.90 0.3 0.0     

Composite c   0.48 0.47     

 

composite c = 

(Wooded Acres * 0.50 + Pasture Acres * 0.42 + Crop Acres * 0.72 

+ Impervious * 0.90) 

Total Acres 

 

Developed Conditions – The proposed development will create 3 new residential building lots.  The 

developed storm water runoff calculations include 10,000 sq ft of impervious area for the new lots.  This 

impervious area will account for the driveway, house footprint, and outbuilding.  The remainder of the 

lot is assumed to be maintained as pasture.  A c value of 0.42 is used for pasture area while a c value of 

0.90 is used for the impervious areas.  A composite c value for each drainage area was calculated as 

shown below. 

Developed   Acres in each Drainage Area 

  c value DA #1 DA #2     

Wooded 0.50 47.9 13.9     

Pasture 0.42 15.8 7.0     

Crops 0.72 0.0 0.0     

Impervious 0.90 1.0 0.0     

Composite c   0.49 0.47     

 

composite c = 

(Wooded Acres * 0.50 + Pasture Acres * 0.42 + Crop Acres * 0.72 

+ Impervious * 0.90) 

Total Acres 



dlutgen72@gmail.com 

 

The storm water runoff for existing and developed conditions is summarized in the following tables.  

Calculations for the storm water runoff are included with the report. 

 DA #1  

  Q10 Q100 

Existing 180.6 319.7 

Developed 185.1 327.7 

Change 2% 2% 

 

 

Conclusion – The creation of three additional building lots on this parcel of ground results in a 2% 

increase in storm water runoff from the property.   

 

 

 



NORTH
   NTS

EXHIBIT #1

Eisenhower Road

DA #1

DA #2



Generated by a Trial Version of NetCentric Technologies’ CommonLook® Acrobat® Plug-in. www.net-centric.com

TABLE 1 Values of Runoff Coefficient C 
URBAN AREAS: 

Type of drainage area Runoff coefficient C 
 

Lawns: 
Sandy soil, flat 2%  
Sandy soil, average, 2 - 7%  
Sandy soil, steep, 7%  
Heavy soil, flat, 2%  
Heavy soil, average, 2 - 7%  
Heavy soil, steep, 7% 

 0.05 - 0.10 
 
 0.10 - 0.15 
 0.15 - 0.20 
 0.13-0.17  
 
 0.18 - 0.22  
 0.25 - 0.35 

Business: 
Downtown areas Neighborhood areas 

0.70 - 0.95  
0.50.0.70 

Residential: 
Single-family areas  
Multi units, detached Multi units,  
attached Suburban  
Apartment dwelling areas 

0.30 - 0.50  
0.40 - 0.60 
0.60 - 0.75 
0.25 - 0.40 
0.50 - 0.70 

Industrial: 
Light areas 
Heavy areas 

 
0.50 - 0.80 
0.60 - 0.90  

Parks, cemeteries 0.10 - 0.25 
Playgrounds  0.20 - 0.35 
Railroad yard areas 0.20 - 0.40 
Unimproved areas 0.10 - 0.30 
Streets: 
Asphaltic  
Concrete  
Brick  

0.70 - 0.95 
0.80 - 0.95 
0.70 - 0.85 

Drives and walks 
Roofs  

0.75 - 0.85 
0.75 - 0.95 

 
 
AGRICULTURAL AREAS: 

Topography 
 and  

Vegetation 

Runoff Coefficient C Soil Texture 
Soil Texture 

Open Sandy Loam Clay and Silt Loam Tight Clay 
Woodland 
Flat 0 - 5% Slope  
Rolling 5 - 10% Slope 
Hilly 10 - 30% Slope 

 
0.10 
0.25 
0.30 
 

 
0.30 
0.35 
0.50 
 

 
0.40 
0.50 
0.60 
 

Pasture 
Flat 
Rolling 
Hilly 

0.10 
0.16 
0.22 

0.30 
0.36 
0.42 
 

0.40 
0.55 
0.60 

 

Cultivated 
Flat 
Rolling 
Hilly 

 

 
0.30 
0.40 
0.52 
 

 
0.50 
0.60 
0.72 
 

 
0.60 
0.70 
0.82 

 
                    
           
 
 

Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS)  US Department of Agriculture (USDA) Peak Discharge Course 

https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/Internet/FSE_DOCUMENTS/stelprdb1083019.pdf 

 

Source -

EXHIBIT #2



���������� !��"� 
#!$ ��%��&!$�'��%&"�

;

@AB7BCDEFGHIDJK7>FL7@FCGAHDC777MDCJFC7GDDCNIJAHFOK7>PQ?<
/ ,./ .// +/// +.//

RFFH
/ ./ +// ,// 3//

@FHFCO
@AB7QGASFK78K=T5?U7IV7BCIJHFN7DJ7W7BDCHCAIH7X?Y=Z7[788Z\7O]FFHY

����������	
	��

�������������� ������������	

���� � !" #$%& '()* +",-./)�)$ )0�)
"-#*-($)!, "-!

�0�0 56#$7()!7,$8)*,68), 6+/)0)$ )�)
"-#*-($)!, "-!/)-# 9-9

�;:2 <!=6)!7,$8)*,68), 6+/)0)$ )3)
"-#*-($)!, "-!/)-# 9-9

���2 >6?(--)*,68), 6+/);)$ )3)
"-#*-($)!, "-!/)-# 9-9

��;� &@6#"!AB#')!7,$8)*,68), 6+/)2)
$ );)"-#*-($)!, "-!

��;� &@6#"!AB#')!7,$8)*,68), 6+/);)
$ )3)"-#*-($)!, "-!/)-# 9-9

���: &@-,A8)*,68), 6+/)3)$ )2�)
"-#*-($)!, "-!/)-# 9-9

��C� &@-,A8%>6?(--)* +",-./)0)$ )
�)"-#*-($)!, "-!/)-# 9-9

EXHIBIT #3



Drainage Area #1- 10 year

Existing Conditions Area = 64.7 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i10 = 175/(Tc +18.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.48

L= 2100 Ti = 8.1 i10 = 214/(Tc +26.7) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 13.5

K= 1 Tt = 3.50

Tc = 11.6

i10 = 5.76

Q=KCiA

Q= 180.6 cfs

Developed Conditions Area = 64.7 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i10 = 175/(Tc +18.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.49

L= 2100 Ti = 7.9 i10 = 214/(Tc +26.7) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 13.5

K= 1 Tt = 3.50

Tc = 11.4

i10 = 5.79

Q=KCiA

Q= 185.1 cfs



Drainage Area #1 - 100 year

Existing Conditions Area = 64.7 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i100 = 256/(Tc +19.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.48

L= 2100 Ti = 8.1 i100 = 331/(Tc +30) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 13.5

K= 1.25 Tt = 3.50

Tc = 11.6

i100 = 8.16

Q=KCiA

Q= 319.7 cfs

Developed Conditions Area = 64.7 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i100 = 256/(Tc +19.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.49

L= 2100 Ti = 7.9 i100 = 331/(Tc +30) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 13.5

K= 1.25 Tt = 3.50

Tc = 11.4

i100 = 8.20

Q=KCiA

Q= 327.7 cfs

















February 10, 2021                                        Leavenworth County Planning Commission 1 

Case No. DEV-20-147 
CoolHeat KC 

Special Use Permit – HVAC Repair Service 
***Public Hearing Required*** 

 
Staff Report – Planning Commission  February 10, 2021 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
Applicant/                   Richard Rogers 
Property Owner: 15890 Linwood Road 

Bonner Springs, KS 66012 
 

Legal Description:      A tract of land in the southeast ¼ of Section 27, Township 11 South, Range 
22 East of the 6th P.M, in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 

 
Location: 15890 Linwood Road 

 
Parcel Size: ± 2.5 acres 
 
Zoning/Land Use: RR-2.5, Rural Residential 2.5-acre minimum size parcels 
 
Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Rural Residential land use category.   
 
Parcel ID No.:   188-27-0-00-00-004.03-0 

 
Planner:  Krystal A. Voth 
 

REPORT: 
 

Request   
The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit for an HVAC Repair service and for the limited storage of 
used HVAC systems while awaiting recycling.  
 
Adjacent Land Use 
The surrounding properties are residences and farms on varying sized parcels ranging from 1 acre to over 
140 acres in size.   
 
Flood Plain   
There are no Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel per FEMA Firm Map 20103C350G July 16, 2015.  
 
Utilities/Services 
Sewer: Private septic system  
Fire: Fairmount  
Water: RWD 7  
Electric:  Evergy  
 
Access/Streets  
The property is accessed by Linwood Road/K-32, a State-maintained highway. 
 
 Agency Comments 
 No agency comments were provided. 
 

Factors to be considered 
The following factors are to be considered by the Planning Commission and the Board of County 
Commission when approving or disapproving this Special Use Permit request: 

1. Character of the neighborhood:  The character of the neighborhood is rural; primarily rural residences, 
and agricultural uses along with a scattering of business uses. The Lake Stop convenience store is 
located directly east of the subject parcel and Performance Glass is located directly south of the 
subject parcel. 



February 10, 2021                                        Leavenworth County Planning Commission 2 

2. Zoning and uses of nearby property:  Much of the surrounding area is zoned as Rural Residential-2.5. 
The corners of 158th and Linwood are zoned as B-3, and less than ¼ mile to the west of the subject 
property is a large subdivision which is zoned as a PUD.  

3. Suitability of the property for the uses to which it has been restricted:  The property is within an area 
suited for rural residences and agricultural use. The use is allowed with approval of a Special Use 
Permit.  

4. Extent to which removal of the restrictions will detrimentally affect nearby property:  Currently, the 
applicant is storing materials on the property and the materials are not screened or enclosed. Several 
neighbors have complained about the storage of materials. Outdoor storage of these types of materials 
are not consistent with the rural residential zoning district. The proposed use does not cause any 
increase in traffic. The applicant has indicated he has plans to build a shop on the property to house 
the materials.  

5. Length of time the property has been vacant as zoned:  The property is not vacant. 
6. Relative gain to economic development, public health, safety and welfare:  The proposed use will 

provide income for the applicant. 
7. Conformance to the Comprehensive Plan:  The Future Land Use Map indicates this area as 

Residential.  
8. Staff recommendation is for the approval of Special Use Permit with conditions. 

 
 

 

Staff Analysis 
 

LOCATION 
Adjacent Residences Adjacent residences are rural in nature and are primarily located on lots that are 

greater than 2.5 acres.   

Adjacent Zoning/Uses General zoning within the area is Rural Residential-2.5. The corners of 158th 
Street and Linwood Road are zoned as B-3, along with two additional parcels. The 
subdivision of Bear Lake is to the west and is zoned as a PUD. There is a 
convenience store and a glass manufacturing business located within the direct 
vicinity of the proposed business.  

Density The area is not densely populated. 

Nearby City Limits The property is not located near an incorporated city limit.  

Initial Growth 
Management Area 

The property is not located within an initial growth management area.  

 

 

SITE COMPATABILITY 
Size of Parcel The parcel is 2.5 acres in size. 

Zoning of Parcel The parcel is zoned Rural Residential-2.5 

Buildings  
(Existing & Proposed) 

There are currently no accessory buildings on the property. The applicant 
proposed to build a shop.  

Setbacks Existing building meet the required setbacks. 

Screening There is no existing screening.  

  
Site Visit 
Staff visited the site in early January. At that time, there were several old units being stored along the 
driveway. The business, in the current state, does not conform to the rural residential nature of the area.  

IMPACT 
Noise Pollution The proposed use will not create additional noise.   

Traffic The use will not create a measurable increase in traffic.  

Lighting The applicant does not have lighting other than security lighting and is not 
requesting lighting. 

Outdoor Storage The applicant currently stores limited HVAC units outside. A condition of the SUP 
is to build a shop that can house the units. 

Parking The applicant has ample parking space for employees. 

Visitors/Employees One employee comes to the site once a week. There are no customers.  

Waste A by-product of the business is the recycling of used HVAC systems. These 
systems shall be recycled per KDHE requirements.  



February 10, 2021                                        Leavenworth County Planning Commission 3 

Complaints 
Staff has received complaints regarding this business which is currently operating without a Special Use 
Permit. 
 
Staff Comments   
The applicant is currently operating an HVAC repair business out of his home. The primary concern of the 
business is not with the repair of units, which takes place off site. The applicant is currently storing used and 
discarded materials at his home. The applicant states that the units are recycled and properly disposed of, 
however there are currently several units stored outside along the driveway. The applicant has indicated 
plans to build a shop to house the materials.  
 
The applicant indicates that one employee comes to the home approximately once per week. All services 
take place off site.  
 
The recommendation of Staff is for a short-term approval of the Special Use Permit with a condition that an 
outbuilding be constructed to house any materials. In the event the applicant does not have the building 
constructed, the SUP should not be renewed. Further, the applicant should work closely with KDHE-Small 
Business/Pollution Prevention division to ensure all necessary protocols are being followed for the storage 
and recycling of materials. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of DEV-20-147, Special Use Permit for CoolHeat KC subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

1. The SUP shall be limited to a period of one year. 
 

2. The applicant shall cause to have constructed an accessory building for the storage of all business-
related equipment. 

 
3. The applicant shall contact the Kansas Department of Health and Environment – Small 

Business/Pollution Prevention division to ensure all necessary protocols are being followed to ensure 
the safe storage of materials.  

 
4. No signage is allowed in the right-of-way.  No signage is requested with the SUP.  All signage shall 

comply with Article 25, Sign Regulations of the Leavenworth County Zoning and Subdivision 
Regulations. 

 
5.  No on-street parking shall be allowed. 
 
6.  This SUP shall be limited to the Narrative dated December 7, 2020 submitted with this application. 
 
7. This SUP shall comply with all local, state, and federal rules and regulations that may be applicable. 

After approval of this SUP by the Board of County Commission all conditions listed shall be adhered to 
and copies shall be provided to the Planning and Zoning Department within 30 days. 
 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
 

1. Recommend approval of Case No. DEV-20-147, Special Use Permit for CoolHeat KC, to the Board of 
County Commission, with Findings of Fact, and with or without conditions; or 
 

2. Recommend denial of Case No. DEV-20-147, Special Use Permit for CoolHeat KC, to the Board of 
County Commission, with Findings of Fact; or  

 
3. Continue the Public hearing to another date, time, and place. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Narrative 
Location/Aerial Maps 
Memorandums  
 



Cool Heat KC SUP

895.5

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

Feet895.50

Notes

Legend

447.75

1 in. = 448ft.

This Cadastral Map is for informational purposes only.  It does not purport to
represent a property boundary survey of the parcels shown and shall not be

used for conveyances or the establishment of property boundaries.

Parcel Number

Parcel

City Limit Line

Major Road

<all other values>

70

Road

Railroad

Section

Section Boundaries

County Boundary



 











February 10, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 1 

Case No. DEV-20-159 
The Barn B&B 

Special Use Permit – Bed & Breakfast 
***Public Hearing Required*** 

 
Staff Report – Planning Commission  February 10, 2021 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
Applicant/                   Kendra & Doug DeLashmutt 
Property Owner: 18131 Eisenhower Road 

Leavenworth, KS 66048 
 

Legal Description:      A tract of land in the Northeast ¼ of Section 19, Township 9 South, Range 
22 East of the 6th P.M. in Leavenworth County, Kansas 
 

Parcel Size: ± 5 acres 
 
Zoning/Land Use: RR-5, Rural Residential 5-acre minimum size parcels 
 
Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the RR-2.5 land use category.   
 
Parcel ID No.:   104-18-0-00-00-023.01 

 
Planner:  Jared Clements 
 

REPORT: 
 

Request   
The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit for a Bed and Breakfast. 
 
Adjacent Land Use 
The surrounding properties are residences and farms on varying sized parcels ranging from 1 acre to over 
140 acres in size.   
 
Flood Plain   
There are Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel per FEMA Firm Map 20103C0125 & 0150G July 16, 
2015.  
 
Utilities/Services 
Sewer: Private septic system  
Fire: Fire District #1 
Water: RWD #8 
Electric:  Freestate Electric 
 
Access/Streets  
The property is accessed by Eisenhower Road, a County Arterial with a paved surface ± 22’ wide. 
 
Agency Comments 
See attached comments – Email – Mitch Pleak – Public Works, January 4, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Becky Fousek – Rural Water District 8, January 2, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Amanda Tarwater – Freestate Electric utility, December 31, 2020 
 
Factors to be considered 
The following factors are to be considered by the Planning Commission and the Board of County 
Commission when approving or disapproving this Special Use Permit request: 

1. Character of the neighborhood:  The character of the neighborhood is rural; primarily rural residences, 
and agricultural uses. 

2. Zoning and uses of nearby property:  The surrounding properties are zoned RR-5, Rural Residential 5-
acre minimum size parcels. The uses are rural residences and agricultural.  



February 10, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 2 

3. Suitability of the property for the uses to which it has been restricted:  The property is within an area 
suited for rural residences and agricultural use. The use is allowed with approval of a Special Use 
Permit. 

4. Extent to which removal of the restrictions will detrimentally affect nearby property:  The area will not 
likely be detrimentally affected. The impacts of a two-bedroom Bed & Breakfast are expected to be 
minimal.  

5. Length of time the property has been vacant as zoned:  The property is not vacant. 
6. Relative gain to economic development, public health, safety and welfare:  The proposed use will 

produce income for the applicant. 
7. Conformance to the Comprehensive Plan:  The Future Land Use Map indicates this area as RR-2.5 

zoning.  
8. Staff recommendation is for the approval of Special Use Permit with conditions. 

 
Staff Comments   
Applicants are requesting a Special Use Permit to operate a Bed & Breakfast in an accessory building on 
their parcel. This Special Use Permit meets the requirements of Article 19 – Table of Uses – Bed and 
Breakfast. The applicants have finished a portion of the accessory building across from their home, installing 
two bedrooms, one bathroom, and a living room area. The applicants anticipate an average of four guests at 
a time between the two bedrooms. They expect guests to generally be couples and small families arriving in 
1-2 vehicles. They hope to generate 10 overnight stays per month on average. The applicants have ample 
parking and well-maintained facilities. Given the minimal anticipated impacts, staff recommends approval of 
this Special Use Permit.  
 

LOCATION 
Adjacent Residences Adjacent residences are rural-suburban uses. Most surrounding properties 

to the north and south are on five (5) acre parcels, or larger.  

Adjacent Zoning/Uses Zoning in the area is RR-5 and are used primarily as rural residences and 
agricultural uses. 

Density The area is not densely populated. 

Nearby City Limits The city of Lansing is approximately two miles to the east of the property. 

Growth Management Area The property is not located within an Urban Growth Management Area. 

 

 

SITE COMPATABILITY 
Size of Parcel The parcel is five (5) acres in size. 

Zoning of Parcel The parcel is zoned Rural Residential-5 

Buildings  
(Existing & Proposed) 

The applicant has a home on the property and a shop that is connected to the 
lodging area.  

Setbacks Existing building meet the required setbacks. 

Screening The property requires no additional screening.  

  
 

 

 

IMPACT 
Noise Pollution This use will not cause prolonged noise pollution. Given the size of the Bed & 

Breakfast, there will not be large numbers of guests on the property. Further, 
outdoor use would be monitored by the applicants, whose home is immediately 
adjacent to where guests will stay.  

Traffic The use will create minimal traffic. The character of the use implicitly will create 
guests coming to the property. The applicants anticipate their guests will mostly 
be couples and families arriving in 1-2 vehicles on average.  

Lighting The applicant does not have lighting other than security lighting and is not 
requesting lighting. 

Outdoor Storage The use does not create any outdoor storage uses.  

Parking The applicant has ample parking space for guests.  

Visitors/Employees The applicant anticipates 1-2 vehicles per booking, and up to 10 bookings per 
month.  

Waste This business is not expected to generate large amounts of waste.   



February 10, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 3 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The staff recommends approval of Case No.DEV-20-159, Special Use Permit for The Barn Bed & Breakfast, 
with the following conditions: 
 

1. The SUP shall be limited to a period of five (5) years. 
 

2. Outdoor activities connected to the SUP shall be limited to the hours of 6am to 12am, Monday through 
Sunday. 

 
3. The applicant shall pay a Traffic Impact Fee (TIF) of $58.93. 

 
4. The SUP shall be limited to no employees other than family members. 

 
5. No signage is allowed in the right-of-way. No signage is requested with the SUP. All signage shall 

comply with Article 25, Sign Regulations of the Leavenworth County Zoning and Subdivision 
Regulations. 

 
6. The applicant shall post a sign with emergency contact numbers in the event of severe weather, fire or 

medical emergency events. 
 

7. No on-street parking shall be allowed. 
 

8. This SUP shall be limited to the Narrative dated December 15, 2020 submitted with this application. 
 

9. This SUP shall comply with all local, state, and federal rules and regulations that may be applicable. 
After approval of this SUP by the Board of County Commission all conditions listed shall be adhered to 
and copies shall be provided to the Planning and Zoning Department within 30 days. 
 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
 

1. Recommend approval of Case No. DEV-20-159, Special Use Permit for The Barn Bed and Breakfast, 
to the Board of County Commission, with Findings of Fact, and with or without conditions; or 
 

2. Recommend denial of Case No. DEV-20-159, Special Use Permit for The Barn Bed & Breakfast, to the 
Board of County Commission, with Findings of Fact; or  

 
3. Continue the Public hearing to another date, time, and place. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Narrative 
Location/Aerial Maps 
Memorandums  
 

 













From:                                         Amanda Tarwater
Sent:                                           Thursday, December 31, 2020 3:03 PM
To:                                               Clements, Jared
Subject:                                     Re: DEV-20-159 SUP DeLashmu� AirBnB
 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
FreeState has no objec�on to this applica�on.
 
 
Thank you,
 

Amanda Tarwater
Member Account Coordinator

 

1-800-794-1989 | www.freestate.coop

From: "Clements, Jared" 
Date: Thursday, December 31, 2020 at 2:47 PM
To: "Magaha, Chuck" , "Van Parys, David" , "Thorne, Eric" , "Miller, Jamie" , "Anderson,
Lauren" , "Johnson, Melissa" , "'mpleak@olsson.com'" , "firedistrict1@fd1lv.org" ,
Amanda Tarwater , 'Rural Water' 
Subject: DEV-20-159 SUP DeLashmu� AirBnB
 
 

Warning: This message originated outside of the FEC organiza�on. Do not click links or open
a�achments unless you have validated the sender and know the content is safe. <=""
span="">

The Department of Planning and Zoning has received an applica�on for a Special Use Permit
regarding a Bed and Breakfast.
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request.
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by January 7, 2021.
 
If you have any ques�ons or need addi�onal informa�on, please contact me at (913) 684-0465 or
at JClements@LeavenworthCounty.Gov
 
Thank you,
 
 
Jared Clements
Planner II
Leavenworth County Planning and Zoning
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212
Leavenworth, KS  66048

mailto:amanda.holloway@freestate.coop
mailto:JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov


From:                                         Mitch Pleak
Sent:                                           Monday, January 4, 2021 4:11 PM
To:                                               Clements, Jared
Cc:                                               Anderson, Lauren; Noll, Bill; 019-2831
Subject:                                     RE: DEV-20-159 SUP DeLashmu� AirBnB
 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Jared,
Lauren and I have reviewed the applica�on.  PW has no comments towards the applica�on.
 
Sincerely,
 
 
 
 
 

Mitch Pleak, PE
Project Engineer / Civil

D 913.748.2503

7301 W. 133rd Street, Suite 200
Overland Park, KS 66213
O 913.381.1170

Follow Us: Facebook / Twitter / Instagram / LinkedIn / YouTube

View Legal Disclaimer

From: Clements, Jared 
Sent: Thursday, December 31, 2020 2:47 PM
To: Magaha, Chuck ; Van Parys, David ; Thorne, Eric ; Miller, Jamie ; Anderson, Lauren ; Johnson,
Melissa ; Mitch Pleak ; firedistrict1@fd1lv.org; Amanda.holloway@freestate.coop; 'Rural Water' 
Subject: DEV-20-159 SUP DeLashmu� AirBnB
 
The Department of Planning and Zoning has received an applica�on for a Special Use Permit
regarding a Bed and Breakfast.
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request.
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by January 7, 2021.
 
If you have any ques�ons or need addi�onal informa�on, please contact me at (913) 684-0465 or
at JClements@LeavenworthCounty.Gov
 
Thank you,
 
 
Jared Clements
Planner II
Leavenworth County Planning and Zoning

mailto:mpleak@olsson.com
mailto:JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:019-2831@olsson.com
https://www.olsson.com/
https://www.facebook.com/WeAreOlsson/
https://twitter.com/olsson_tweets
https://www.instagram.com/weareolsson/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/weareolsson/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCfCGdcQ8yP3YoP2CgSSw2uw
https://www.olsson.com/disclaimer
mailto:JClements@LeavenworthCounty.Gov


From:                                         Rural Water

Sent:                                           Saturday, January 2, 2021 11:57 AM

To:                                               Clements, Jared

Subject:                                     RWD#8 Re: Dev-20-159 Delashmu�

 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.

 

Mr. Clements:

RWD#8 provides water service to 18131 Eis. Rd. with a 4" water line.  The account is in good
standing with RWD#8.

 

--

Becky Fousek

Office Manager

Rural Water District #8-LV CO

mailto:rwd8lv@gmail.com
mailto:JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov


February 10, 2021                                    Leavenworth County Planning Commission 1 

 
Case No. DEV-21-002 

Free State Electric 
Special Use Permit – Solar Farm 

***Public Hearing Required*** 
 
Staff Report – Planning Commission  February 10, 2021 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
Applicant/                   FreeState Electric Cooperative 
Property Owner: 1100  SW Auburn Road 

Topeka, KS 66615 
 

Legal Description:      A tract of land in the southeast ¼ of Section 26, Township 10 South, Range 
21 East of the 6th P.M, in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 

 
Location: 00000 Tonganoxie Drive, located directly northeast of 20667 Tonganoxie Drive 

 
Parcel Size: ± 6.9 acres 
 
Zoning/Land Use: RR-5, Rural Residential 5-acre minimum size parcels 
 
Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Residential land use category.   
 
Parcel ID No.:   147-26-0-00-00-014.07 

 
Planner:  Krystal A. Voth 
 

REPORT: 
 

Request   
The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit for a solar farm on a tract of land located directly adjacent 
to an existing electric substation. 
 
Adjacent Land Use 
The surrounding properties are residences and farms on varying sized parcels ranging from 1 acre to over 
140 acres in size.   
 
Flood Plain   
There are no Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel per FEMA Firm Map 20103C0225G July 16, 2015.  
 
Utilities/Services 
Sewer: Private septic system  
Fire: Stranger  
Water: RWD 9  
Electric:  FreeState  
 
Access/Streets  
The property is accessed by Tonganoxie Drive, a County Arterial Roadway with a hard surface. 
 
 Agency Comments 
All agency comments and concerns have been addressed. No outstanding items remain. 
 

 

 

 

 

 



February 10, 2021                                    Leavenworth County Planning Commission 2 

Factors to be considered 
The following factors are to be considered by the Planning Commission and the Board of County 
Commission when approving or disapproving this Special Use Permit request: 

1. Character of the neighborhood:  The character of the neighborhood is rural; primarily rural residences, 
and agricultural uses. 
 

2. Zoning and uses of nearby property:  The surrounding properties are zoned RR-5, Rural Residential 5-
acre minimum size parcels. The uses are rural residences and agricultural.  

 
3. Suitability of the property for the uses to which it has been restricted:  The property is within an area 

suited for rural residences and agricultural use. The use is allowed with approval of a Special Use 
Permit. 

 
4. Extent to which removal of the restrictions will detrimentally affect nearby property:  The area will not 

likely be detrimentally affected. The applicant currently owns the subject property which is located 
directly next to an existing substation. There will not be an increase in traffic. The applicants provided a 
drainage report which concludes the addition of the solar panels will not cause additional runoff. 

 
5. Length of time the property has been vacant as zoned:  The property has never been developed upon. 

 
6. Relative gain to economic development, public health, safety and welfare:  The proposed use will 

provide a source of renewable energy, will provide income to the co-op and will provide revenue for co-
op members.  

 
7. Conformance to the Comprehensive Plan:  The Future Land Use Map indicates this area as Residential.  

 
8. Staff recommendation is for the approval of Special Use Permit with conditions. 

 
 

Staff Analysis 
 

LOCATION 
Adjacent Residences The area is primarily comprised of rural residences and farmland. 

Adjacent Zoning/Uses Zoning in the area is RR-5 and are used primarily as rural residences and 
agricultural uses. 

Density The area is not densely populated. 

Nearby City Limits The property is not located near an incorporated city. 

Initial Growth 
Management Area 

The property is located not located within an initial Growth Management Area. 

 

IMPACT 
Noise Pollution The use will not cause any additional noise pollution. 

Traffic There will not be additional traffic associated with this use.  

Lighting The applicant does not have lighting other than security lighting and is not 
requesting lighting. 

Outdoor Storage No outdoor storage. 

Parking The applicant has ample parking space for employees. 

Visitors/Employees The stie will be visited periodically by a maintenance worker. 

Waste The use will not create waste. 



February 10, 2021                                    Leavenworth County Planning Commission 3 

 

SITE COMPATABILITY 
Size of Parcel The parcel is six (6) acres in size. 

Zoning of Parcel The parcel is zoned Rural Residential-5 

Buildings  
(Existing & Proposed) 

The site will be comprised of solar panels. 

Setbacks Structures will meet required setbacks. 

Screening There will be a safety fence. Screening is not necessary.  

  
Staff Comments   
The applicants are proposing a solar farm located directly next to an existing substation. The existing 
substation has a current, lifetime Special Use Permit. The location is ideal given the proximity to the 
substation and the open area, which is necessary for solar farms. The proposed solar farm is located on a 
parcel that is approximately 6.9 acres. The solar farm is expected to generate up to 1 megawatt of solar 
energy. Staff had concerns regarding potential runoff from the panels. The applicants provided a drainage 
report which has been accepted by Olsson. The report shows no measurable increase in runoff. The use will 
not cause additional traffic or noise. Staff recommends approval of the special use permit. Given the nature 
of the use, Staff recommends a lifetime SUP.  
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of Case No.DEV-21-002, Special Use Permit for FreeState Electric – Solar 
Farm, with the following conditions: 
 

1. The SUP shall be granted for the duration of the use. 
 

2. No signage is allowed in the right-of-way.  No signage is requested with the SUP.  All signage shall 
comply with Article 25, Sign Regulations of the Leavenworth County Zoning and Subdivision 
Regulations. 

 
3.  No on-street parking shall be allowed. 
 
4.  This SUP shall be limited to the Narrative dated January 7, 2021 submitted with this application. 
 
5. This SUP shall comply with all local, state, and federal rules and regulations that may be applicable. 

After approval of this SUP by the Board of County Commission all conditions listed shall be adhered to 
and copies shall be provided to the Planning and Zoning Department within 30 days. 
 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
 

1. Recommend approval of Case No. DEV-21-002, Special Use Permit for FreeState Electric – Solar 
Farm?, to the Board of County Commission, with Findings of Fact, and with or without conditions; or 
 

2. Recommend denial of Case No. DEV-21-002, Special Use Permit for FreeState Electric – Solar Farm, 
to the Board of County Commission, with Findings of Fact; or  

 
3. Continue the Public hearing to another date, time, and place. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Narrative 
Location/Aerial Maps 
Memorandums  
 

 



FreeState Solar Farm SUP

1,284.4

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

Feet1,284.40

Notes

Legend

642.19

1 in. = 642ft.

This Cadastral Map is for informational purposes only.  It does not purport to
represent a property boundary survey of the parcels shown and shall not be

used for conveyances or the establishment of property boundaries.

Parcel Number

Parcel

City Limit Line

Major Road

<all other values>

70

Road

Railroad

Section

Section Boundaries

County Boundary



1

Voth, Krystal

From: Mitch Pleak <mpleak@olsson.com>

Sent: Friday, January 29, 2021 8:40 AM

To: Voth, Krystal

Cc: Anderson, Lauren; Noll, Bill; 019-2831

Subject: FW: Free State Solar Development

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 
Krystal, 
The drainage report submitted address all comments.  I have enclosed the drainage report received in the link below for 
Bill and Lauren’s records. 
 
https://oaconsulting.sharefile.com/d-s265a95e8b7fa4958872462cf9a25b4cc  
 
Sincerely, 
 
Mitch Pleak 
 

Mitch Pleak, PE 
Project Engineer / Civil 

D 913.748.2503 

7301 W. 133rd Street, Suite 200 
Overland Park, KS 66213 
O 913.381.1170 

 

Follow Us: Facebook / Twitter / Instagram / LinkedIn / YouTube 

View Legal Disclaimer 

From: David Lutgen <dlutgen72@gmail.com>  
Sent: Thursday, January 28, 2021 8:10 PM 
To: Voth, Krystal <KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Mitch Pleak <mpleak@olsson.com> 
Cc: Learon Dalby <ldalby@todayspower.com>; Keaghan Economon <keconomon@todayspower.com> 
Subject: Re: Free State Solar Development 
 
Revised drainage report is attached. 
 
Thanks  
 
David Lutgen, P.E. 
 
On Thu, Jan 28, 2021 at 3:05 PM Voth, Krystal <KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov> wrote: 

All, 



2

  

Please see the response below: 

  

Question:  Can you clarify this comment - Please give an explanation of how the panels increase the impervious area (ie 
only the piers come in contact with the ground).  The panels do not increase the impervious area so how/why would I 
explain that they do. 

  

Response:  Provide a statement that the solar panels itself are not in contact with the ground and therefore not an 
impervious area.  However, the piers are in contact with the ground.  The purpose of the statement is to support minimal 
quantifiable impact from the solar array. 

  

  

Thanks, 

  

Krystal  

  

From: Learon Dalby <ldalby@todayspower.com>  
Sent: Thursday, January 28, 2021 2:34 PM 
To: Voth, Krystal <KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Cc: Mitch Pleak <mpleak@olsson.com>; David Lutgen <dlutgen72@gmail.com>; Keaghan Economon 
<keconomon@todayspower.com> 
Subject: RE: Free State Solar Development 

  

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

  

Krystal,  

  

Can you confirm we have meet all of the requested items?  

  

Learon Dalby 

Today’s Power, Inc. 



3

501-920-2446 

ldalby@todayspower.com 

  

From: David Lutgen <dlutgen72@gmail.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, January 27, 2021 8:18 PM 
To: Mitch Pleak <mpleak@olsson.com>; Voth, Krystal <KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Cc: Learon Dalby <ldalby@todayspower.com> 
Subject: Free State Solar Development 

  

Mitch, 

  

Can you clarify this comment - Please give an explanation of how the panels increase the impervious area (ie only the 
piers come in contact with the ground). 

  

The panels do not increase the impervious area so how/why would I explain that they do. 

  

  

Krystal, 

  

Has the County ever required a drainage report from a SUP request to build an event barn?  Those are typically building 
very large structures.  I do prepare a lot of drainage reports in the County and I don't recall ever doing one for a SUP. 

  

  

  

Thanks 

  

David Lutgen, P.E. 

  

  





dlutgen72@gmail.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Stranger Solar 

Leavenworth County Kansas 

Drainage Report 

 Prepared January 25, 2021 

Revised January 28, 2021 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



dlutgen72@gmail.com 

 

Parcel Information - The 6.9-acre (+/-) parcel is located on the west side of Tonganoxie Drive north of 

Tonganoxie in Leavenworth County KS. It is located directly north of 20667 Tonganoxie Drive.  The 

parcel is zoned RR 5.0.   

Existing Conditions – The parcel appears to be currently used as a hay field.  There are no structures on 

the parcel.  There is a tree line along the west property line.  The site slopes to the east and can be 

divided into two drainage areas as shown on exhibit #1.  A c value of 0.36 was used for each drainage 

area.  The c value is based on the soil type, slopes, and existing land use, see Exhibits #2 and #4.   

 

Developed Conditions – Free State Electric is planning to construct a solar array on this parcel of ground 

which is directly north of an existing power substation.  The solar array will cover approximately 50% of 

the parcel.  The solar panels are mounted on beams above the ground, see exhibit #5.  The beams are 

driven into the ground to minimize the area disturbed during construction.   The area under the solar 

panels and the remainder of the parcel will be planted in native grasses.  A gravel entrance /parking area 

will be constructed from the substation property in the south east corner of the property.  This area is 

approximately 3,300 sq ft (0.08 acres).  A c value of 0.50 was used for the gravel area, see exhibit #3.  A 

composite c value was calculated for each drainage area 

Developed   Acres in each Drainage Area 

  c value DA #1 DA #2     

Pasture 0.36 3.70 3.12     

Gravel Driveway 0.50 0.00 0.08     

Composite c   0.36 0.36     

 

composite c = 
(Pasture Acres * 0.36 + Gravel Driveway Acres * 0.50) 

Total Acres 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



dlutgen72@gmail.com 

 

 

The storm water runoff for existing and developed conditions is summarized in the following tables.  

Calculations for the storm water runoff are included with the report. 

 DA #1  

  Q10 Q100 

Existing 7.1 12.6 

Developed 7.1 12.6 

Change 0% 0% 

 

 DA #2  

  Q10 Q100 

Existing 6.2 11.0 

Developed 6.2 11.0 

Change 0% 0% 

 

 

Conclusion – The small amount of less impervious area being added by this project does not change the 

c value for the property.   There is no measurable impact to the storm water runoff from the site. 

 

 

 



F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

dlutg
Polygon

dlutg
Text Box
   DA #13.7 Acres

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Arrow

dlutg
Text Box
   DA #23.2 Acres

dlutg
Text Box
Exhibit #1



Generated by a Trial Version of NetCentric Technologies’ CommonLook® Acrobat® Plug-in. www.net-centric.com

TABLE 1 Values of Runoff Coefficient C 
URBAN AREAS: 

Type of drainage area Runoff coefficient C 
 

Lawns: 
Sandy soil, flat 2%  
Sandy soil, average, 2 - 7%  
Sandy soil, steep, 7%  
Heavy soil, flat, 2%  
Heavy soil, average, 2 - 7%  
Heavy soil, steep, 7% 

 0.05 - 0.10 
 
 0.10 - 0.15 
 0.15 - 0.20 
 0.13-0.17  
 
 0.18 - 0.22  
 0.25 - 0.35 

Business: 
Downtown areas Neighborhood areas 

0.70 - 0.95  
0.50.0.70 

Residential: 
Single-family areas  
Multi units, detached Multi units,  
attached Suburban  
Apartment dwelling areas 

0.30 - 0.50  
0.40 - 0.60 
0.60 - 0.75 
0.25 - 0.40 
0.50 - 0.70 

Industrial: 
Light areas 
Heavy areas 

 
0.50 - 0.80 
0.60 - 0.90  

Parks, cemeteries 0.10 - 0.25 
Playgrounds  0.20 - 0.35 
Railroad yard areas 0.20 - 0.40 
Unimproved areas 0.10 - 0.30 
Streets: 
Asphaltic  
Concrete  
Brick  

0.70 - 0.95 
0.80 - 0.95 
0.70 - 0.85 

Drives and walks 
Roofs  

0.75 - 0.85 
0.75 - 0.95 

 
 
AGRICULTURAL AREAS: 

Topography 
 and  

Vegetation 

Runoff Coefficient C Soil Texture 
Soil Texture 

Open Sandy Loam Clay and Silt Loam Tight Clay 
Woodland 
Flat 0 - 5% Slope  
Rolling 5 - 10% Slope 
Hilly 10 - 30% Slope 

 
0.10 
0.25 
0.30 
 

 
0.30 
0.35 
0.50 
 

 
0.40 
0.50 
0.60 
 

Pasture 
Flat 
Rolling 
Hilly 

0.10 
0.16 
0.22 

0.30 
0.36 
0.42 
 

0.40 
0.55 
0.60 

 

Cultivated 
Flat 
Rolling 
Hilly 

 

 
0.30 
0.40 
0.52 
 

 
0.50 
0.60 
0.72 
 

 
0.60 
0.70 
0.82 

 
                    
           
 
 

dlutg
Highlight

dlutg
Highlight

dlutg
Snapshot

dlutg
Text Box
Source -

dlutg
Text Box
Exhibit #2



 

Referenced from MDOT Drainage Manual, www.michigan.gov  
 
Storm Water Management  CF – 1          2015 
Shiawassee County 
 
 

 
Table 3-1 Runoff Coefficients for Rational Formula 

 

Type of Drainage Area Runoff Coefficient, C* 

Concrete or Asphalt Pavement  0.8 – 0.9 
Commercial and Industrial  0.7 – 0.9 
Gravel Roadways and Shoulders  0.5 – 0.7 
Residential – Urban  0.5 – 0.7 
Residential – Suburban 0.3 – 0.5 
Undeveloped  0.1 – 0.3 
Berms  0.1 – 0.3 
Agricultural – Cultivated Fields  0.15 – 0.4 
Agricultural – Pastures  0.1 – 0.4 
Agricultural – Forested Areas  0.1 – 0.4 

 
For flat slopes or permeable soil, lower values shall be used. For steep slopes 
or impermeable soil, higher values shall be used. Steep slopes are 2:1 or 
steeper.  
 
From Michigan State Administrative Rules R 280.9.  
 

 
  
 

dlutg
Text Box
EXHIBIT #3

dlutg
Highlight



Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

N

Map projection: Web Mercator   Corner coordinates: WGS84
0 100 200 400 600

Feet
0 30 60 120 180

Meters
Map Scale: 1:2,110 if printed on A portrait (8.5" x 11") sheet.

Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.

Map Unit Symbol Map Unit Name Acres in AOI Percent of AOI

7234 Elmont silt loam, 3 to 7 percent 
slopes, eroded

9.5 100.0%

Totals for Area of Interest 9.5 100.0%

dlutg
Text Box
Exhibit #4



dlutg
Text Box
EXHIBIT #5



Drainage Area #1- 10 year

Existing Conditions Area = 3.7 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i10 = 175/(Tc +18.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.36

L= 500 Ti = 13.1 i10 = 214/(Tc +26.7) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 5.5

K= 1 Tt = 0.83

Tc = 13.9

i10 = 5.35

Q=KCiA

Q= 7.1 cfs

Developed Conditions Area = 3.7 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i10 = 175/(Tc +18.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.36

L= 500 Ti = 13.1 i10 = 214/(Tc +26.7) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 5.5

K= 1 Tt = 0.83

Tc = 13.9

i10 = 5.35

Q=KCiA

Q= 7.1 cfs



Drainage Area #1 - 100 year

Existing Conditions Area = 3.7 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i100 = 256/(Tc +19.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.36

L= 500 Ti = 13.1 i100 = 331/(Tc +30) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 5.5

K= 1.25 Tt = 0.83

Tc = 13.9

i100 = 7.60

Q=KCiA

Q= 12.6 cfs

Developed Conditions Area = 3.7 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i100 = 256/(Tc +19.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.36

L= 500 Ti = 13.1 i100 = 331/(Tc +30) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 5.5

K= 1.25 Tt = 0.83

Tc = 13.9

i100 = 7.60

Q=KCiA

Q= 12.6 cfs



Drainage Area #2- 10 year

Existing Conditions Area = 3.2 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i10 = 175/(Tc +18.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.36

L= 450 Ti = 13.1 i10 = 214/(Tc +26.7) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 5.5

K= 1 Tt = 0.75

Tc = 13.8

i10 = 5.36

Q=KCiA

Q= 6.2 cfs

Developed Conditions Area = 3.2 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i10 = 175/(Tc +18.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.36

L= 450 Ti = 13.1 i10 = 214/(Tc +26.7) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 5.5

K= 1 Tt = 0.75

Tc = 13.8

i10 = 5.36

Q=KCiA

Q= 6.2 cfs



Drainage Area #2 - 100 year

Existing Conditions Area = 3.2 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i100 = 256/(Tc +19.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.36

L= 450 Ti = 13.1 i100 = 331/(Tc +30) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 5.5

K= 1.25 Tt = 0.75

Tc = 13.8

i100 = 7.61

Q=KCiA

Q= 11.0 cfs

Developed Conditions Area = 3.2 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i100 = 256/(Tc +19.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.36

L= 450 Ti = 13.1 i100 = 331/(Tc +30) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 5.5

K= 1.25 Tt = 0.75

Tc = 13.8

i100 = 7.61

Q=KCiA

Q= 11.0 cfs

















F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O



Conc.
Concrete

Mailbox

Sanitary Sewer Manhole

Sanitary Sewer Cleanout

Origin Unknown (unless noted)

Measured Dimension

Deed Dimension

Plat Dimension

Right of Way

Sign

(M)

(D)

(P)

R/W

Water Valve

Light Pole

Undetermined Manhole

Fence

Handicap Parking

Bollard

Existing Iron Rod 

Curb Inlet or Area Inlet

Fire Hydrant

Power Pole

Gas Meter 

Water Meter

Guy Wire

(unless otherwise noted)

Set 1/2"x24"  Iron Rod/Cap

Telephone Riser Box

Section Corner

Setback Line

Boundary Line

Gas Line

Water Line

Overhead Electric Line

Sanitary Sewer Line

Underground Telephone

Origin Unknown (unless noted)

C
O

R
N

E
R

S
T

O
N

E

Electric Meter
Electric Cabinet

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE : 1" = 100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Vicinity Map

AutoCAD SHX Text
Possible Encroachments

AutoCAD SHX Text
Items Corresponding to Schedule B

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zoning Information

AutoCAD SHX Text
Utility Information

AutoCAD SHX Text
Legend of Symbols & Abbreviations

AutoCAD SHX Text
Owners & Encumbrances Legal Description

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTA/NSPS Land Title Survey

AutoCAD SHX Text
AA

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
To: Freestate Electric Cooperative, Inc. Security 1st Title. Today's Power Inc. This is to certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in accordance with the 2016 Minimum Standard Detail Requirements for ALTA/NSPS Land Title Surveys, jointly established and adopted by ALTA and NSPS, and includes Items 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(b), 7(a), 7(c), 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, 16, 17, 18 and 20 of Table A thereof.  The field work was completed in October 5, 2020..

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANGE 21 EAST of the 6th PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,

AutoCAD SHX Text
of a portion of SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 10 SOUTH,

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEAVENWORTH COUNTY, KANSAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
DLB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/9/2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-2009286-K

AutoCAD SHX Text
LATEST REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Miscellaneous Notes

AutoCAD SHX Text
Flood Note

AutoCAD SHX Text
The bearings shown hereon are based upon the Kansas State Plane Coordinate System, South Zone. This survey does not reflect any easements, rights-of-way or other instruments of record except those shown on the current mentioned Title Commitment. Underground utilities are shown by above ground markings provided by others.  At the date this survey was done in the field, earth moving, asphalt paving, concrete work and construction was not complete. There is no evidence of subject site being used as a solid waste dump or sanitary land fill. There is no evidence of subject site being used as a burial ground or cemetery. Vertical Datum: LVCO CP 401, Aluminum Cap NAVD 88 ELEV. 907.70 Outline area shown for design and layout purposes only.  Client (Leavenworth-Jefferson Electric Cooperative Inc.) owns the property that the Solar Field is to be erected on. Overlaps parcel to South. County GIS of site shows a jog in the Southerly right-of-way along the Northern side of Leavenworth County Road No. 5.  With discussion with Public Works, Mapping, Appraiser and Register of Deeds, no documentation could be provided defining that jog in right-of-way.

AutoCAD SHX Text
This property is not in a Special Flood Hazard Zone according to Flood Insurance Rate Map, Community Number 20103C0225G, effective date 7-16-2015.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
TODAY'S POWER, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MITCHELL RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Not To Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO BE PROVIDED BY THE CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
Please call Kansas One-Call before digging. 1-800-DIG-SAFE One call ticket number 20477311, dated 10-1-20.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Rodney R. Zinn, L.S. No. 1559

AutoCAD SHX Text
Regional Surveying, LLC  Serving Kansas, Missouri & Oklahoma      1921 North Penn, Independence, KS 67301 Ph:620-331-67671921 North Penn, Independence, KS 67301 Ph:620-331-6767921 North Penn, Independence, KS 67301 Ph:620-331-6767

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW. CORNER SE/4 SEC. 26, T10S, R21E EXISTING 5/8" IRON ROD PER REFERENCE BY LS 1252

AutoCAD SHX Text
The possible existence of overhead or underground utility lines serving adjacent land or extending from the insured land onto adjacent land. Subject to existing road, street or highway rights of way. Easement granted to Board of County Commissioners Leavenworth County, Kansas, as set forth in the instrument filed as Book 310, Page 619. DOES NOT AFFECT SUBJECT PROPERTY. Right of Way Easement granted to Rural Water District No. 9, Leavenworth County, as set forth in the instrument filed as Book 503, Page 1070. EASEMENT TO FOLLOW LOCATION OF WATER LINE, UNDEFINED, NOT PLOTTABLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRANGER SUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
207TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEAVENWORTH CO. RD. 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
TITLE NOT AVAILABLE - O & E Report Only

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 88°19'05" E  2629.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 01°35'05" E  2639.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 88°13'01" W  2620.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1169.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
882

AutoCAD SHX Text
883

AutoCAD SHX Text
884

AutoCAD SHX Text
885

AutoCAD SHX Text
886

AutoCAD SHX Text
887

AutoCAD SHX Text
888

AutoCAD SHX Text
889

AutoCAD SHX Text
889

AutoCAD SHX Text
888

AutoCAD SHX Text
887

AutoCAD SHX Text
885

AutoCAD SHX Text
886

AutoCAD SHX Text
882

AutoCAD SHX Text
880

AutoCAD SHX Text
881

AutoCAD SHX Text
879

AutoCAD SHX Text
878

AutoCAD SHX Text
877

AutoCAD SHX Text
876

AutoCAD SHX Text
872

AutoCAD SHX Text
873

AutoCAD SHX Text
874

AutoCAD SHX Text
875

AutoCAD SHX Text
870

AutoCAD SHX Text
880

AutoCAD SHX Text
875

AutoCAD SHX Text
870

AutoCAD SHX Text
865

AutoCAD SHX Text
860

AutoCAD SHX Text
865

AutoCAD SHX Text
865

AutoCAD SHX Text
865

AutoCAD SHX Text
862

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEAVENWORTH CO. RD. 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
E/4 CORNER SEC. 26, T10S, R21E EXISTING IRON ROD (WITH UNREADABLE CAP) PER REFERENCE BY LS 1296

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE. CORNER SEC. 26, T10S, R21E EXISTING IRON ROD WITH CAP LS 889 PER REFERENCE BY LS 1296

AutoCAD SHX Text
S/4. CORNER SEC. 26, T10S, R21E EXISTING 5/8" IRON ROD (WITH UNREADABLE CAP) PER REFERENCE BY LS 1252

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Control Point

AutoCAD SHX Text
N:311308.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
E:2151837.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
Z:898.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND IRON ROD AND CAP (MEEKS, LS 78)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND IRON ROD AND CAP (MEEKS, LS 78)

AutoCAD SHX Text
251.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
303684 Sq. Feet

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.972 Ac.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Solar Panel Tract Area Description (Note: overlaps parcel to South) A tract of land in the Southeast 1/4 of Section 26, Township 10 South, Range 21 East of the Sixth P.M. Leavenworth County, Kansas, described as follows: Commencing at the South 1/4 corner of said Section 26: thence North 01°47'28" West,along the West line of said Southeast 1/4, 1475.07 feet to the described centerline of Old Leavenworth-Lawrence Road; thence North 49°21'47" East, along said centerline,426.11 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence continuing North 49°21'47" East, alongsaid centerline, 29.91 feet; thence North 47°13'41" East, along said centerline, 616.78feet to the Southwesterly corner of Lot 5, Voelker Family Farm subdivision; thence South 56°35'39" East, along the Southwesterly side of said Lot 5, 328.84 feet to theSoutheasterly corner thereof; thence South 33°26'09" West, along the apparentright-of-way of Leavenworth County Road No. 5, 289.41 feet; thence along said apparent right-of-way, on a curve to the right having a radius of 2814.90 feet, a chord bearing of South 39°02'30" West and a Chord Length of 552.62 feet for an ArcDistance of 553.51 feet; thence North 30°23'05" West, 479.28 feet to the Point ofBeginning, containing 6.972 Acres, more or less.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 01°47'28" W  1475.07'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 49°21'47" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 49°21'47" E  426.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
°

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 30°23'05" W  479.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 56°35'39" E  328.84'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 33°26'09" W  289.41'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 5/8" IRON ROD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND IRON ROD AND CAP (WHITE, LS 356) aka-SW Corner, Lot 5 Voelker Family Farm Located 9.67' SE of Calculated Corner

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND IRON ROD AND CAP (HERRING LS 129)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND IRON ROD AND CAP (LS 1357)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE OF OLD LAWRENCE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 47°13'41" E  616.78'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Report No: 2401533 Revision A Report Effective Date: December 2, 2020, at 7:30 a.m. Property Address: Tonganoxie Dr., Tonganoxie, KS 66086 EXHIBIT "A" All that part of the Southeast Quarter of Section 26, Township 10 South, Range 21 East of the Sixth P.M., lying West of County Road #5, less any part thereof taken or used for road or Highway purposes, all in Leavenworth County, Kansas. and LESS the following described tracts: (1) Beginning at a point 893.60 feet North 00°22'54" East from the Southwest corner of said Southeast Quarter and being on the Northerly right of way line of County Road #5 and also being on the West line of said Southeast Quarter; thence North 00°22'54" East 580.60 feet along said West line to the center-line of the Old Lawrence Road; thence North 51°29' East 150.0 feet along said center-line, thence South 14°10'02" East 522.43 feet to the Northerly right of way of County Road #5; thence at a right angle with said road, 10.00 feet Southeasterly to a point 40.00 feet from the center-line; thence in a Southwesterly direction on a curve to the right, having a center-line radius of 2864.90 feet, 300.00 feet to the Point of Beginning, in Leavenworth County, Kansas. (2) 16 acres of land more or less in the Southeast Quarter of said Section 26, Township 10 South, Range 21 East of the Sixth P.M., described as beginning at the Northwest corner of said Quarter Section, running thence East to the West line of the Old Lawrence Road; thence West with the West line of said Road, to the West line of said Quarter Section; thence North to the Place of Beginning, in Leavenworth County, Kansas. (3) Commencing at the Southwest corner of the Southeast Quarter; thence North 00°22'54" East along the West line of said Southeast Quarter 1473.46 feet; thence North 51°29'00" East along the centerline of the Old Lawrence Road 150.00 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence continuing North 51°29'00" East along said center line 57.00 feet; thence South 21°37'20" East 503.305 to the Northerly right of way of County Highway No. 5; thence following said right of way on a curve to the right having a radius of 2814.90 feet, a length of 124.97 feet, and a chord having a bearing of South 53°49'32" West, 124.96 feet; thence North 14°18'53" West, 522.12 feet to the Point of Beginning, in Leavenworth County, Kansas. (4) Lot 5, in Voelker Family Farm, a Subdivision in the Southeast Quarter of Section 26, Township 10 South, Range 21 East of the Sixth P.M., Leavenworth County, Kansas.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I



STRANGER SOLAR

CIVIL & STRUCTURAL CONSTRUCTION PLAN SET

FOR

AT

LEAVENWORTH COUNTY ROAD 5

TONGANOXIE, KANSAS 66086

12/18/2020

SA

RA H A . S MEDLEY

PROFESS IONA L  ENGIN
EE

R

27903

LICENSED

K A NS A S



”

12/18/2020

SA

RA H A . S MEDLEY

PROFESS IONA L  ENGIN
EE

R

27903

LICENSED

K A NS A S



F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

12/18/2020

SA

RA H A . S MEDLEY

PROFESS IONA L  ENGIN
EE

R

27903

LICENSED

K A NS A S



F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

12/18/2020

SA

RA H A . S MEDLEY

PROFESS IONA L  ENGIN
EE

R

27903

LICENSED

K A NS A S



F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

S

F

S

F

S

F

S

F

S
F

S

F

S

F

S
F

S

F

S

F

S

F

S

F

S

F

12/18/2020

SA

RA H A . S MEDLEY

PROFESS IONA L  ENGIN
EE

R

27903

LICENSED

K A NS A S

SF



F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

F

O

12/18/2020

SA

RA H A . S MEDLEY

PROFESS IONA L  ENGIN
EE

R

27903

LICENSED

K A NS A S



12/18/2020

SA

RA H A . S MEDLEY

PROFESS IONA L  ENGIN
EE

R

27903

LICENSED

K A NS A S



xxxx

xxxx

xxxx

xxxx

xxxx

xxxx

xxxx

xxxx

xxxx

xxxx

xxxx

xxxx

x x x x x

xx x x x

xx x x x

xx x x x

x x x x x

x x x x x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x x x xx x x x

12/18/2020

SA

RA H A . S MEDLEY

PROFESS IONA L  ENGIN
EE

R

27903

LICENSED

K A NS A S



O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

G

L

G

L

G

L

G

L

G

L

G

L

G

L

G

L

G

L

G

L

G

L

G

L

G

L

G

L

G

L

G

L

G

L

G

L

G

L

G

L

G

L

GL

G
L

G
L

12/18/2020

SA

RA H A . S MEDLEY

PROFESS IONA L  ENGIN
EE

R

27903

LICENSED

K A NS A S



12/18/2020

SA

RA H A . S MEDLEY

PROFESS IONA L  ENGIN
EE

R

27903

LICENSED

K A NS A S

¾

·
·
·
·



12/18/2020

SA

RA H A . S MEDLEY

PROFESS IONA L  ENGIN
EE

R

27903

LICENSED

K A NS A S



12/18/2020

SA

RA H A . S MEDLEY

PROFESS IONA L  ENGIN
EE

R

27903

LICENSED

K A NS A S



February 10, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 1 

Case No. DEV-20-149 
Rezoning 

***Public Hearing Required*** 
 

Staff Report – Planning Commission  February 10, 2021 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
Applicant/                   David & Elizabeth McCall 
Property Owner: 16421 McIntyre Road 

Leavenworth, KS 66048 
 

Legal Description:      A tract of land in the Northeast Quarter of Section 4, Township 10 South, 
Range 22 East of the 6th P.M. in Leavenworth County, Kansas.  
 

Parcel Size: ± 42.8 acres 
 
Zoning/Land Use: RR-5, Rural Residential 5-acre minimum size parcels 
 
Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Residential (3 Units/Acre) land use category.   
 
Parcel ID No.:   152-04-0-00-00-001.02 

 
Planner:  Jared Clements 
 

REPORT: 
 

Request   
The applicant is requesting to rezone a parcel of land from RR-5 to RR-2.5. 
 
Adjacent Land Use 
The surrounding properties are residences and farms on varying sized parcels ranging from 1 acre to over 
140 acres in size.   
 
Flood Plain   
There are 5.5 acres of Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel, specifically on the southern half of this 
parcel, per FEMA Firm Map 201030250G July 16, 2015.  
 
Utilities/Services 
Sewer: Private septic system  
Fire: Fire District #1 
Water: RWD #8 
Electric:  Freestate Electric 
 
Access/Streets  
The property is accessed by McIntyre Road. This road is a County Road with a gravel surface ± 22’ wide. 
 
Agency Comments 
See attached comments – Email – Mitch Pleak – Public Works, January 4, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – David Van Parys – County Counselor, January 4, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Amanda Tarwater – Freestate Electric utility, December 31, 2020 
See attached comments – Email – Becky Fousek – Rural Water District 8, January 2, 2021 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



February 10, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 2 

Factors to be considered 
The following factors are to be considered by the Planning Commission and the Board of County 
Commission when approving or disapproving this Rezoning request: 

 
1. Character of the neighborhood:  The character of the neighborhood is rural; agricultural uses and rural 

residences. 
 

2. Zoning and uses of nearby property:  The surrounding properties are zoned RR-5, Rural Residential 5-
acre minimum size parcels. The uses are rural residences and agricultural use. The property is ½ mile 
from current RR-2.5 zoning surrounding the City of Lansing.  

 
3. Suitability of the property for the uses to which it has been restricted:  The property is within an area 

which is appropriate for rural residence and agricultural uses.  
 
4. Extent to which removal of the restrictions will detrimentally affect nearby property:  The area will not 

likely be detrimentally affected. The area is suited for rural residential uses which includes single family 
homes on 2.5 acres of land.  

 
5. Length of time the property has been vacant as zoned:  The property is not vacant. 
 
6. Relative gain to economic development, public health, safety and welfare:  The proposed rezoning will 

allow the property owners to divide their property more favorably, ensuring 40+ acres remain as 
agricultural land and placing their home on a separate parcel.  

 
7. Conformance to the Comprehensive Plan:  The Future Land Use Map indicates this area as 

Residential, which would allow for up to 3 units per acre. The applicants are seeking to split their home 
from agricultural land, and so the zoning they are requesting has less potential for developmental 
intensity than if they were to match the Future Land Use map.  

 
8. Staff recommendation is for the approval of the rezoning request. 

  
Staff Comments   
The applicants in this case are seeking to perform a tract split to separate their home from their 40 acres of 
agricultural land, subject to the approval or denial of this rezoning request. They own approximately 42.8 
acres, meaning a tract split under the current zoning would capture a section of their agricultural land.  
 
This parcel is within the Residential land use category of the Future Land Use map, which allows for up to 3 
units per acre. Though their proposal is for a less-intense RR-2.5 zoning, staff is supportive of the request 
due to the absence of sanitary sewer connection in the area (which would be required for 3 unit/acre 
development).  
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The staff recommends approval of Case No.DEV-20-149, Rezoning from RR-5 to RR-2.5. 

 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
 

1. Recommend approval of Case No. DEV-20-149, Rezoning from RR-5 to RR-2.5., to the Board of 
County Commission, with Findings of Fact, or 
 

2. Recommend denial of Case No. DEV-20-149, Rezoning from RR-5 to RR-2.5., to the Board of County 
Commission, with Findings of Fact; or  

 
3. Continue the Public hearing to another date, time, and place. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Narrative 
Location/Aerial Maps 
Memorandums  
 

 







From:                                         Van Parys, David
Sent:                                           Monday, January 4, 2021 8:12 AM
To:                                               Clements, Jared
Subject:                                     RE: DEV-20-149 McCall Rezone
 

Jared, No apparent legal concerns.
 
From: Clements, Jared 
Sent: Thursday, December 31, 2020 1:54 PM
To: Magaha, Chuck ; Van Parys, David ; Thorne, Eric ; Miller, Jamie ; Anderson, Lauren ;
'mpleak@olsson.com' ; Anderson, Kyle ; 'Rural Water' ; Amanda.holloway@freestate.coop;
firedistrict1@fd1lv.org
Subject: DEV-20-149 McCall Rezone
 
The Department of Planning and Zoning has received a rezoning applica�on for a property on
McIntyre Road. The property is currently zone RR-5 and the proposed zoning is RR-2.5
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request.
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by January 7, 2021.
 
If you have any ques�ons or need addi�onal informa�on, please contact me at (913) 684-0465 or
at JClements@LeavenworthCounty.Gov
 
Thank you,
 
Jared Clements
Planner II
Leavenworth County Planning and Zoning
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212
Leavenworth, KS  66048
(913)684-0465
 

mailto:DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:JClements@LeavenworthCounty.Gov


From:                                         Amanda Tarwater
Sent:                                           Thursday, December 31, 2020 2:01 PM
To:                                               Clements, Jared
Subject:                                     Re: DEV-20-149 McCall Rezone
 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
FreeState Electric has no objec�on to this request.
 
 
 
Thank you,
 

Amanda Tarwater
Member Account Coordinator

 

1-800-794-1989 | www.freestate.coop

From: "Clements, Jared" 
Date: Thursday, December 31, 2020 at 1:54 PM
To: "Magaha, Chuck" , "Van Parys, David" , "Thorne, Eric" , "Miller, Jamie" , "Anderson,
Lauren" , "'mpleak@olsson.com'" , "Anderson, Kyle" , 'Rural Water' , Amanda Tarwater ,
"firedistrict1@fd1lv.org" 
Subject: DEV-20-149 McCall Rezone
 
 

Warning: This message originated outside of the FEC organiza�on. Do not click links or open
a�achments unless you have validated the sender and know the content is safe. <=""
span="">

The Department of Planning and Zoning has received a rezoning applica�on for a property on
McIntyre Road. The property is currently zone RR-5 and the proposed zoning is RR-2.5
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request.
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by January 7, 2021.
 
If you have any ques�ons or need addi�onal informa�on, please contact me at (913) 684-0465 or
at JClements@LeavenworthCounty.Gov
 
Thank you,
 
Jared Clements
Planner II
Leavenworth County Planning and Zoning
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212
Leavenworth, KS  66048

mailto:amanda.holloway@freestate.coop
mailto:JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov


From:                                         Mitch Pleak
Sent:                                           Monday, January 4, 2021 4:16 PM
To:                                               Clements, Jared
Cc:                                               Anderson, Lauren; Noll, Bill; 019-2831
Subject:                                     RE: DEV-20-149 McCall Rezone
 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Jared,
Lauren and I have reviewed the applica�on.  It is assumed the Planning and Zoning will verify the
tract size is coordina�on with the comprehensive plan as stated in the applica�on.  PW has no
comments towards the applica�on.
 
Sincerely,
 
 
 
 
 

Mitch Pleak, PE
Project Engineer / Civil

D 913.748.2503

7301 W. 133rd Street, Suite 200
Overland Park, KS 66213
O 913.381.1170

Follow Us: Facebook / Twitter / Instagram / LinkedIn / YouTube

View Legal Disclaimer

From: Clements, Jared 
Sent: Thursday, December 31, 2020 1:54 PM
To: Magaha, Chuck ; Van Parys, David ; Thorne, Eric ; Miller, Jamie ; Anderson, Lauren ; Mitch Pleak
; Anderson, Kyle ; 'Rural Water' ; Amanda.holloway@freestate.coop; firedistrict1@fd1lv.org
Subject: DEV-20-149 McCall Rezone
 
The Department of Planning and Zoning has received a rezoning applica�on for a property on
McIntyre Road. The property is currently zone RR-5 and the proposed zoning is RR-2.5
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request.
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by January 7, 2021.
 
If you have any ques�ons or need addi�onal informa�on, please contact me at (913) 684-0465 or
at JClements@LeavenworthCounty.Gov
 
Thank you,
 
Jared Clements
Planner II

mailto:mpleak@olsson.com
mailto:JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:019-2831@olsson.com
https://www.olsson.com/
https://www.facebook.com/WeAreOlsson/
https://twitter.com/olsson_tweets
https://www.instagram.com/weareolsson/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/weareolsson/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCfCGdcQ8yP3YoP2CgSSw2uw
https://www.olsson.com/disclaimer
mailto:JClements@LeavenworthCounty.Gov


From:                                         Rural Water

Sent:                                           Saturday, January 2, 2021 11:54 AM

To:                                               Clements, Jared

Subject:                                     RWD#8 RE: Dev-20-149 McCall

 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.

 

Mr. Clements:

 

RWD#8 provides water service to 16421 McIntyre Road with a 2" water line.  The account is in
good standing with the RWD#8.

 

--

Becky Fousek

Office Manager

Rural Water District #8-LV CO

mailto:rwd8lv@gmail.com
mailto:JClements@leavenworthcounty.gov


From:                                         Pete Barre�

Sent:                                           Tuesday, February 2, 2021 9:19 PM

To:                                               jclemnents@leavenworthcounty.gov; PZ;
jculbertson@leavenworthcounty.gov; vkazz@leavenworthcounty.gov;
Smith, Doug; Smith, Michael; S�eben, Mike

Cc:                                               Pete Barre�

Subject:                                     Opposi�on to rezone of parcel from R5 to R2.5

 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.

 

Dear Leavenworth County Commissioners - 

 

Very respec�ully, I opposed my neighbors desire to rezone their property (16421 McIntyre Road -
66048) from R5 to R2.5. I only found out last weekend of the hearing scheduled for 2-10-21 and
was shocked. The pe��on era themselves on many occasions have told me directly that they do
not want to encourage growth on their land by breaking it into smaller pieces. This movement by
the pe��oners is not for growth, it is simply for greed. 

 

I am adamantly opposed to their proposal, applica�on DEV-20-149. I would like to provide a
couple reasons it would be a bad idea to approve this proposal. 

 

First, I contend that approving this would set a dangerous precedent for the county. If this is
approved, what would keep the other established land owners from having a residen�al neighbors
and all the “trouble” associated with uncontrolled growth built right next to their cow paster, corn
field, or been field? As shown by Windam Hills and Rock Creek and other places in the county
where Urban meets rural, there is a significant clash of life styles. Not only are the crops at risk
from the new neighbors ignorance, we also see that residents just help themselves to Trespassing
and inadvertently li�ering on crop/pasture land. On two occasions, the farmer a�ended the HOA
board mee�ng  at Windam Hills to discuss how throwing yard waste and clippings over the fence
for the cows to eat was NOT giving them a treat. In fact, this was dangerous to his cows because of
the high concentra�on of fer�lizers, insec�cides, and weed control poisons in the clippings. This
ac�vity con�nued a�er the plead as a high turn over rate of reality is the norm in this area. In
addi�on, his pastures and corn field became places for the residents to hit their golf balls for fun.
A residen�al free driving range without consequence. Who would pay for a cow that eats one and
dies? No neighbors are good neighbors as fences fail. If approved, would it be reasonable to
determine that annexa�on by the City of Lansing would not be far behind? In addi�on, these
fields are always subject of trespassing at night for nefarious ac�vi�es. 

 

mailto:petebarrett55@gmail.com
mailto:petebarrett55@gmail.com


Secondly, what environmental impact are the pe��oners prepared to address prior to their
pe��on? More residents means more waste and more unwanted waste will end up on other
property. As it is, li�ering is a rampant ac�vity as you look in our drainage ditches. I suspect that
there will not be ANY enforcement of li�ering laws on our new road, so I expect the new road and
approval of the pe��oners proposal to have a nega�ve impact as well. 

 

Third, prior to us moving to this loca�on in 2010, the proposers brother (Cur�s McCall)  tried to
get his land (52 total acres) re-zoned so he could break it up. He was denied due to lack of road
frontage/irregular tract. However, I know that a specific local Real Estate agent was pushing him to
file so he could get MORE $. Now I have invested heavily into this 52 acres and will loose all my
efforts building a ca�le farm from scratch if approved. Ironically, the pe��oners for the rezone
asked my wife and I if we planned to break up this land when we purchased. We said no and they
were relieved. I will be direct, I submit that the pe��oners are doing this for their own benefit and
have a double standard. They and WILL do anything they can for one reason… MONEY. I am a civil
man and realize that I myself am not everyones cup of tea. So, I just want to be a good neighbor
and leave them alone so they can leave me alone. However, allowing them to parcel their land out
will prove to be just the beginning of their greedy movement. We had to buy our land in
accordance with the county rules and regula�ons, they should be under the same obliga�on (if
not more) as they have already allowed a family into their residence in an�cipa�on of approval of
their pe��on. My neighbors are sneaky and I do not trust them as they only care about
themselves. Their family record proves it. 

 

Third, the services (to include water and electricity) and protec�on for Fire and Police are not in
place at this �me. My wife and I had to wait for emergency services on McIntyre road of about 25
minutes when we were coming home from the LV County Fair. On evening. As we pulled our cows
towards our home, we no�ced a car stopped in the middle of the road. The occupants had passed
out with the car in drive and the radio blaring. A�er dialing 911, thinking they were dead, I woke
them trying to check for their pulse, they were not happy. The ambulance arrived before the
Police. It was just me and my wife trying to do the right thing. Anything could have happened
while we waited. It was 3 on two and drugs were involved. 

 

Fourth, even though the road is now paved, it is more dangerous than ever to be on. Due to
drivers speed and the narrowness of the road, I do not walk or ride my bike on the newly paved
surface. I actually take extra precau�ons checking the mail. As it is now, someone is going to get
killed on this road. The one sure way to mi�gate this poten�al is to keep the traffic down. Allow
more families on this road with conjest it further and exponen�ally increase the poten�al for
serious crashes. The first mistake was to pave it and not widen it. The road was half ass done if the
commission is wan�ng to rezone these tracts. Are the approvers of the road going to take
responsibility for knowingly paving a road improperly to expedite expansion?    

 

In conclusion - gran�ng this rezone pe��on will enable the proposers,  the proposers family and
others to my due east to parcel out the land without taking responsibility for rapid expansion and
lack of planning. Gran�ng this proposal will cause a chain reac�on through out the county. It will
also create unnecessary conflict amongst county ci�zen. The infrastructure is NOT in place at this
�me to start ac�vely encouraging growth by rezoning. We are in a pandemic that has redefined
our country and our county. Many have been laid off. Many are sent home from work and have to
work remote. Some effects of the new normal are accentuated due to the fact that intern services



are not in place in the county, We don’t even have reliable internet service for our children to
ZOOM into class. Everything out here has been kept simple and quiet because of the actual
pe��oners desire NOT to have neighbors. `

 

Rezoning make no sense and is fueled by the pe��oners greed. Please do not approve this
proposal. 

 

My email and phone number is below if you need clarifica�on or would like to discuss my families
posi�on further. I would also like to be present during the hearing. Please let me the new COVID
protocol for a�endance.   

 

Pete Barrett

Stay Motivated

913-240-2007

petebarrett55@gmail.com

 

 

 

mailto:petebarrett55@gmail.com

	LEAVENWORTH COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
	Agenda for the Regular Meeting of 6:00 P.M., Wednesday, February 10, 2021
	County Courthouse - 300 Walnut Street - Leavenworth, Kansas 66048
	www.leavenworthcounty.gov
	1. Call to Order
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	4. Approval of Minutes
	5. Secretary’s Report
	6. Approval of Agenda
	7. Declarations: (if necessary)
	A. Declarations of receipt of communications by Planning Commissioners
	B. Disclosure of ex-parte communications for each hearing item
	C. Declarations of abstention from specific agenda items by a Commissioner
	DEV-20-152&153 Guenther Barker Pre&Final Plat PC Packet.pdf
	Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Residential land use category.
	REPORT:
	Request
	Adjacent Land Use
	Flood Plain
	There are no Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel per FEMA Firm Map 20103C325G & 20103C350G July 16, 2015.
	Utilities/Services
	Access/Streets
	Staff Comments

	DEV-20-154 & 155 Tiner Acres Pre & Final PLAT Packet.pdf
	Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Mixed-Use land use category.
	REPORT:
	Request
	Adjacent Land Use
	Flood Plain
	There are no Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel per FEMA Firm Map 20103C????G July 16, 2015.
	Utilities/Services
	Access/Streets
	Staff Comments

	2020.02.10 DEV-20-159 SUP - PC Packet.pdf
	Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the RR-2.5 land use category.
	REPORT:
	Request
	Adjacent Land Use
	Flood Plain
	There are Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel per FEMA Firm Map 20103C0125 & 0150G July 16, 2015.
	Utilities/Services
	Access/Streets
	Factors to be considered
	Staff Comments

	2021.02.10 DEV-21-002 FreeState PC Report.pdf
	DEV-21-002 Freestate Solar Farm (Public).pdf
	Special Use Permit Application
	Owner Authorization Form
	FreeState Narrative
	Deed
	2020_12_21_Stranger Exhibit-EX1.02.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	EX1.02


	2020_12_21_Stranger land survey 12-9-2020.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	2020_12_21_Stranger_Civil_IFC_R00_sealed.pdf
	C01.01 C01.00 STRANGER COVER R00
	Sheets and Views
	C01.01 C01.00 STRANGER COVER R00


	C02.01 C02.00 STRANGER GENERAL NOTES R00
	Sheets and Views
	C02.01 C02.00 STRANGER GENERAL NOTES R00


	C03.01 C03.00 STRANGER EXISTING CONDITIONS R00
	Sheets and Views
	C03.01 C03.00 STRANGER EXISTING CONDITIONS R00


	C04.01 C04.00 STRANGER CIVIL SITE PLAN R00
	Sheets and Views
	C04.01 C04.00 STRANGER CIVIL SITE PLAN R00


	C05.01 C05.00 STRANGER EROSION CONTROL PLAN R00
	Sheets and Views
	C05.01 C05.00 STRANGER EROSION CONTROL PLAN R00


	C06.01 C06.00 STRANGER GRADING PLAN R00
	Sheets and Views
	C06.01 C06.00 STRANGER GRADING PLAN R00


	C07.01 C07.00 STRANGER FOUNDATION PLAN R00
	Sheets and Views
	C07.01 C07.00 STRANGER FOUNDATION PLAN R00


	C08.01 C08.00 STRANGER DETAILS R00
	Sheets and Views
	C08.01 C08.00 STRANGER DETAILS R00


	C08.02 C08.00 STRANGER DETAILS R00
	Sheets and Views
	C08.02 C08.00 STRANGER DETAILS R00


	C08.03 C08.00 STRANGER DETAILS R00
	Sheets and Views
	C08.03 C08.00 STRANGER DETAILS R00


	C08.04 C08.00 STRANGER DETAILS R00
	Sheets and Views
	C08.04 C08.00 STRANGER DETAILS R00


	C08.05 C08.00 STRANGER DETAILS R00
	Sheets and Views
	C08.05 C08.00 STRANGER DETAILS R00





	2020.02.10 DEV-20-149 Rezone McCall - pc Packet.pdf
	Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Residential (3 Units/Acre) land use category.
	REPORT:
	Request
	Adjacent Land Use
	Flood Plain
	There are 5.5 acres of Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel, specifically on the southern half of this parcel, per FEMA Firm Map 201030250G July 16, 2015.
	Utilities/Services
	Access/Streets
	Factors to be considered
	Staff Comments


